
 

 

 
 

 
HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Regular Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

Time:  8:00 a.m. 
HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541 

 
 

The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the 
Commission Clerk.  Upon recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or questions.  Anyone wishing to address the 
Commission on an agenda item or on business introduced by the Housing Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item.  
Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under discussion.   NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be 
addressed.  To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public speakers wishing to address the Housing Commission.  The 
Chairperson has the discretion to further limit this time if warranted by the number of speakers. 
 
The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on Thursday, August 2, 2018, duly distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Alameda. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please contact 
the Housing Authority office at (510) 727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable 
arrangements. 
 
 
 

   PAGE 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL   

2. CLOSED SESSION 
Contract Negotiations with SEIU Local 1021 and the Housing Authority of the 
County of Alameda  

Labor Negotiations Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 

  

3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS ACTION 3 

4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 13, 2018 MEETING ACTION 5 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - On matters not on the Agenda   

6. NEW BUSINESS   

6-1. Recognize Vanessa Diaz as HACA’s Shining Star for July – December 2018 PRESENTATION 12 

6-2. Resolution Approving the Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU Local 1021 ACTION 13 

6-3. Salary Adjustment for Non-Management, Non-Bargaining Unit Employees ACTION 20 

6-4. Resolution Approving the Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) 
Certification  

ACTION 21 

6-5. Resolution Adopting the Petty Cash Fund Policy ACTION 31 

 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 



 

 

 

HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Regular Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

Time:  8:00 a.m. 
HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541 

 

PAGE 2 

   PAGE 

6-6. Amend and Renew the Management Agreement between Preserving Alameda County 
Housing, Inc. and the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 

ACTION 34 

6-7. Approve Revisions to HACA’s Travel Policy ACTION 35 

6-8. Approve the 2018 HACA Scholarship Awards ACTION 36 

6-9. Alameda County Employees’ Retirement Association (ACERA) Medical Plan Subsidy for 
Eligible Retirees 

INFORMATION 38 

6-10. Budget Status Report INFORMATION 42 

6-11. Program Activity Report INFORMATION 44 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS   

8. COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

9. COMMUNICATIONS     

10. ADJOURNMENT   



 

3 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

 

 

 

 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
August 8, 2018 

 

 



 

4 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting Date:  August 8, 2018 

 

Subject: Election of Officers 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 
  
Recommendation: Elect Officers to the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson Positions for 

FY 2018-2019 

 

DISCUSSION 

In accordance with the Housing Commission’s bylaws, your Commission must elect, by a 

majority vote, a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for a term of one (1) year.  At your June 13, 

2018 meeting, your Commission appointed Commissioners Gerry and Hannon as the 

Nominating Committee. 

The Nominating Committee will formally present the candidates that it recommends for the 

Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson positions and an election will be held.  The newly-elected 

officers will take their seats immediately and the newly-elected Chairperson will chair the 

meeting. 

 



 

5 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  4. 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
June 13, 2018 



 

6 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  4. 

 

HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING:  JUNE 13, 2018 

HACA BOARD ROOM, 22941 ATHERTON STREET, HAYWARD, CA 94541 
 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 Call to Order 

Chairperson Gerry called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Present:   Cmrs. Buckholz, Finely, Gacoscos, Gerry, Hannon, Maass, Patz and Peixoto 
Excused:   Cmr. Ballew 

 

2. ACTION:  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF APRIL 11, 2018 HOUSING COMMISSION MEETING 
 Motion/Second:   Peixoto/Gacoscos. 

Ayes:  All.  Motion passed.  APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED.   
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 None.  

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

4-1. RESOLUTION NO. 07-18:  APPROVING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING WITH PARTNER AGENCIES TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR THE MAINSTREAM 
VOUCHER PROGRAM 

 Christine Gouig, Executive Director, made some introductory remarks.  She described the Mainstream 
Voucher Program and commented that it will be a good opportunity for HACA to provide housing 
assistance to persons with disabilities who are non-elderly. 
 
Jennifer Cado, Senior Administrative Analyst, presented the staff report.  Ms. Cado described the 
application process, reported that HACA will apply for 150 vouchers and discussed some of the 
waitlist preferences that may need to change for this program.  She also described the Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU) with the partner agencies that HACA will be working with to administer the 
vouchers for the Mainstream Program and indicated who some of these agencies are. 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 07-18 approving authorization to enter into a Memorandum 
of Understanding with partner agencies to submit an application for the Mainstream Voucher 
Program. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Hannon congratulated staff for their work on the application process 
for the Mainstream Voucher Program. 



 

7 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  4. 
 

 Motion/Second:  Hannon/Patz. 
Ayes:   All.    Motion passed.  APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
4-2. RESOLUTION NO. 08-18:  APPROVING CONTRIBUTION TO THE ALAMEDA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ 

RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION (ACERA) FOR THE JULY 1, 2018 – JUNE 30, 2019 FISCAL YEAR 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig reported that the contribution to the Alameda 
County Employees’ Retirement Association (ACERA) to fund HACA’s 401(h) subaccount for the fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2018 is $268,437.91. 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 08-18 approving contribution of $268,437.91 to the 
Alameda County Employees’ Retirement Association for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018.   
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Peixoto and Ms. Gouig briefly discussed pension liability.  Cmr. Hannon 
asked if retirees currently contribute to their medical and dental benefits.  Ms. Gouig indicated that 
staff will gather information on this and report back on this at the next Housing Commission meeting. 
 
Motion/Second:  Hannon/Buckholz. 
Ayes:  All.   Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4-3. RESOLUTION NO. 09-18:  APPROVING THE OPERATING BUDGETS FOR THE JULY 1, 2018 – JUNE 30, 
2019 FISCAL YEAR 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig described the impact that HUD’s funding 
schedule has on HACA’s budget preparation process and the factors that were considered in 
formulating the budget projections.  She also described some of the restrictions that are in place while 
HACA is in funding shortfall and indicated that HACA’s Housing Choice Voucher program is shrinking as 
a result.  Ms. Gouig summarized the income and expenses in the proposed budget for the July 1, 2018 
– June 30, 2019 fiscal year and reported on the federal budget. 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 09-18 approving the operating budgets for the July 1, 2018 – 
June 30, 2019 Fiscal Year. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Peixoto asked about the unrestricted net position and Ms. Gouig 
provided clarification on the amount shown in the budget statement.  Cmr. Peixoto and Ms. Gouig 
also discussed the unfunded pension liability.  Ms. Gouig indicated that staff is expecting that ACERA 
will ask its participating employers to fund part of this liability in the future.  She also indicated that it 
is not clear what factors are used to calculate the amount of the unfunded pension liability and that 
staff expects to receive more details on this in future.  Cmr. Peixoto and Ms. Gouig also discussed the 
Section 8 Admin Fee funding and Cmr. Peixoto commented that HUD does not provide enough 
funding for the work that HACA does.  Ms. Gouig and Cmr. Peixoto talked about the average contract 
rent and the increase in the amounts of subsidies that HACA has to pay as a result of rising rents.  
 
Cmr. Gerry commented that the housing situation must be viewed from all sides and described some 
of the challenges that landlords are facing as a result of the rising cost of expenses.  
 
Cmr. Patz commented on the unfunded pension liability issue and recommended that staff take a look 
at what the County is doing in terms of employee benefits and perhaps mirror it.  Cmr. Patz also 
commented on the insufficient funding from the federal government.  He commented that it appears 



 

8 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  4. 
 

 that the federal government is moving toward turning over the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
program to the states.   
 
Cmr. Hannon praised Ms. Gouig and Ms. Leoncio for their work in managing the funds and looking for 
other opportunities and sources of funding.  He also commented that he is pleased to see that the 
units that are owned by Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc. (PACH) continuously show income.   
 
Cmr. Maass commented that if housing authorities were turned over to the states, the regulations 
and requirements may be less restrictive.   
 
Cmr. Gacoscos asked if the funding fee is same nationwide.  Ms. Gouig explained that it is the same 
proration but that the fee itself differs. 
 
Motion/Second:  Hannon/Peixoto. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.     APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4-4. ACTION:  ACCEPT THE AUDIT FOR THE JULY 1, 2016 – JUNE 30, 2017 FISCAL YEAR 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig reported that an audit of the July 1, 2016 – June 
30, 2017 fiscal year was completed by Patel & Associates.  She explained that HACA is required to 
complete an audit annually and that the audit was conducted in the areas of financial operation and 
internal controls for all of HACA’s programs, including those activities carried out by PACH.  Ms. Gouig 
described the various components of the audit, summarized the key sections in the audit report, and 
reported that no findings, significant deficiencies or any instances of non-compliance with program 
requirements were identified in the audit.  Ms. Gouig praised Cathy Leoncio, Finance Director, and the 
HACA staff for their hard work. 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the result of the audit for the July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017 fiscal year. 
 
Motion/Second:  Gacoscos/Maass. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.     APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4-5. ACTION:  ASSIGN SALARY TO THE REVISED CLASSIFICAITON OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
MANAGER 

 Charla Freckmann, Human Resources Manager, presented the staff report.  Ms. Freckmann reported 
that as a result of recent changes in HACA’s Information Technology (IT) department, including the 
retirement of the IT Manager and the conversion to a new housing and financial software system, the 
Systems Manager classification no longer reflects the actual work being performed.  She described the 
tasks of the IT Manager and Systems Manager classifications and indicated that staff is proposing to 
revise the IT Manager classification in order to combine some the tasks of the two positions.  Ms. 
Freckmann indicated that a salary survey was conducted by Koff & Associates for the IT Manager 
classification and summarized the results of the survey.  She noted that the adjustment to the salary 
range resulting from the survey does not automatically increase the employee’s salary but instead will 
be added to the salary range for the positon.  Ms. Freckmann indicated that the Personnel Committee 



 

9 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  4. 

 

 will meet following the Housing Commission meeting and recommended that the Housing 
Commission approve the changes to the IT Manager classification and accept the salary range 
assignment contingent on the Personnel Committee’s approval of the revisions to the IT Manager 
classification. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve changes to the Information Technology Manager classification and accept 
the salary range assignment effective the first pay period following approval, contingent upon 
approval of the revised classification by the Personnel Committee. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Hannon and Ms. Freckmann discussed the salary compensation survey. 

 

4-6. ACTION:  APPOINTMENTS TO THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE  
 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig described the role of the Housing Commission’s 

Personnel Committee and named the current members.  She reported that with the passing of Cmr. 
Don Biddle in February and the departure of Christine Steiner in May, there are currently two 
vacancies on the Committee.   
 
After a brief discussion, Cmrs. Pete Ballew and Michael Hannon volunteered to serve on the Personnel 
Committee.  
 
Recommendation:  Approve the appointments of Commissioners Pete Ballew and Michael Hannon to 
the Personnel Committee.   
 
Motion/Second:  Patz/Gerry. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.     APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4-7. ACTION:  APPOINT A NOMINATING COMMITTEE FOR THE FY 2018-2019 HOUSING COMMISSION 
OFFICERS 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig described the role of the Nominating 
Committee and recommended that the Commission appoint members to a Nominating Committee to 
nominate candidates for the Housing Commission’s FY 2018-2019 Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 
positions. 
 
After a brief discussion, Cmrs. Gerry and Hannon volunteered to serve on the Nominating Committee. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the appointments of Commissioners Mark Gerry and Michael Hannon to 
the Nominating Committee.   
 
Motion/Second:  Patz/Gerry. 
Ayes:  All.  Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

4-8. INFORMATION:  BUDGET STATUS REPORT 
 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Report received with no questions from the Housing 

Commission. 



 

10 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  4. 

 

4-9. INFORMATION:  PROGRAM ACTIVITY REPORT 
 Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager, presented the staff report.  Mr. Taylor welcomed Cmr. 

Angela Finley to the Housing Commission.  He reported that the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) staff has 
been working hard to grow the FSS program and named some of the recent FSS workshops that were 
held.  Mr. Taylor invited the Commissioners to attend the FSS Health and Resource Fair scheduled for 
July 21.  Ms. Gouig described the FSS Health and Resource Fair and named some of the vendors who 
participate in this event each year.  Mr. Taylor indicated that the fair has been very successful and is 
widely attended each year.  
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Buckholz and Ms. Gouig discussed the Christine Steiner Inspiration 
Award that was created in honor of former Housing Commissioner Christine Steiner. 

 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 None. 

 

6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 Cmr. Patz reported that the City of Emeryville is likely to pass a $50 million housing bond and 
described some of the projects the City is looking into.  Cmr. Patz also reported on his attendance at 
the 2018 NAHRO Washington Conference. 

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 

 The California Association of Housing Authorities (CAHA) 2018 legislative briefing paper was 
distributed to the Housing Commission and to the public.  Ms. Gouig reported that a CAHA 
delegation, which included her and Cmr. Patz, met with various representatives during the 2018 
NAHRO Washington Conference and shared the briefing paper at these meetings.  Cmr. Patz praised 
CAHA for being very well prepared at these meetings with the representatives. 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 There being no further business to discuss, Chairperson Gerry adjourned the meeting at 9:08 a.m. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

  
 

Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 

 Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary 
 
 

Approved: Mark Gerry 
Housing Commission Chairperson 

 



 

11 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

August 8, 2018 
 

 

 

 



 

12 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-1. 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting Date:  August 8, 2018 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2006 the Housing Authority created a Communications Committee composed of staff from all 
departments.  The Committee created an “Employee of the Quarter” recognition program to 
acknowledge exceptional individual contributions of HACA employees.  At the end of 2011 the 
Committee decided to revamp the program to allow more time for chosen employees to enjoy their 
recognition.  The Committee re-named the award “HACA’s Shining Star” and extended the recognition 
period to six months, so there will be two Shining Stars per year.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Housing Authority is privileged to have on its staff Vanessa Diaz, an Eligibility Leadworker in the 
Programs Department.  Vanessa’s selection was announced at the HACA All Staff meeting held on June 
14.  The comments below were submitted by those who nominated Vanessa and describe her 
outstanding work in the following categories:  Innovative Idea, Problem Solving, Team Effort & Flexibility in 
Working with Others, Customer Service, and Acknowledgement from the Public, Co-Workers and Clients: 
 

“I nominate Vanessa Diaz.  Her professionalism is outstanding, she is always courteous and 
understanding, not only with the participants but with her co-workers too.   
 
Vanessa has shown a very positive attitude in every aspect of being a new Leadworker.  She tries 
to make everyone happy and she is very helpful in our working environment.  She comes up with 
ideas to make our jobs easier.  She is a new lead and doing her best to learn her job.  She is 
encouraging.  She always has a smile and is always friendly.  
 
I am proud to work with Vanessa.  P.S. She brings us popcorn to our department meetings.” 

 
Staff recommends that your Housing Commission recognize Vanessa Diaz as “HACA’s Shining Star” for 
July-December 2018. 
 

Subject: Recognize Vanessa Diaz  as HACA’s Shining Star for July-December 2018 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 



 

13 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2. 

 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current MOU between the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA) and SEIU Local 
1021, which represents all full time, non-confidential and non-management employees, expired on June 
14, 2018.  The parties agreed to pursue the concept of a one-year contract “roll-over” with a lump sum 
payment in the amount of $3,650 per bargaining unit employee.  The parties reached tentative 
agreement and the Union's negotiating team submitted the tentative agreement to the membership for 
ratification.   
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
The changes to the former MOU are on pages 1, 28 and 41.  All other terms and provisions remain the 
same. 
 
Pages 1 (introductory paragraph) and 41 (Section 35:  Term of Memorandum) reflect changes to the 
dates/term of the MOU only.  The substantive change regarding wages on page 28 is as follows: 
 
SECTION 12. WAGES 
 
A. A $3,500.00 $3,650.00 one-time lump sum payment will be made to all bargaining unit members 

employed and in a paid status as of June 15, 2018, to be paid no later than September 21, 2017 
August 23, 2018.   

Subject: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SEIU Local 1021 
  
Exhibits Attached: - Resolution No. 10-18 

- Signed Tentative Agreement 
- Revised Successor MOU (pages with changes only) 

  
Recommendations: Adopt Resolution Approving Successor MOU 
  
Financial Statement: $ 250,390 for bargaining unit employees 



 

14 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends your Commission adopt a resolution approving the terms of the MOU with SEIU Local 
1021 as reflected above.  The pages containing exact language changes for the 2018-2019 MOU are 
attached.  Payment is recommended for the first pay period following your Commission’s approval. 

 

 



 

15 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
RESOLUTION NO.:  10-18 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)  

WITH SEIU LOCAL 1021 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (“Authority”) recognizes Service 
Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1021 as the exclusive representative for the Authority’s 
general employees bargaining unit, the classifications for which are listed in Appendix A to the Parties’ 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for fiscal year 2018-2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties sought agreement on a one-year contract roll-over and held discussions 
regarding the change in compensation for this roll-over; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties have now come to agreement on an MOU for the 2018-2019 fiscal year;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Alameda does hereby approve and authorize the Human Resources Manager to execute 
the Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU Local 1021 for the 2018-2019 fiscal year as presented at 
this meeting. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the 
County of Alameda on this 8th day of August 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 

ABSTAIN: 
 

EXCUSED: 
 

ABSENT: 
     __________________________________ 
     Mark Gerry 
     Housing Commission Chairperson 

Attest: 
 

_________________________________________ 
Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary  Adopted:  _____________________ 

 



 

16 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2. 

 



HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2.

17



HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2.

18



HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-2.

19



 

20 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-3. 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The negotiated Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Housing Authority of the County of 
Alameda and SEIU Local 1021 covers all full time, non-confidential, non-management employees.  The 
Housing Authority has two classifications that are not management and are not part of the bargaining 
unit represented by SEIU Local 1021.  One classification is a part-time Administrative Clerk and the other 
classification is Secretary, which is classified as confidential and is in the Human Resources Department.  
There is one employee in each of these classifications.  
 
It has been the Housing Authority’s standard practice to implement the same terms and conditions of 
employment for these classifications as those that were negotiated for the bargaining unit.  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends your Commission approve the same terms and conditions of employment for non-
management, non-bargaining unit classifications, consistent with standard practice and as reflected in 
the Total Tentative Agreement approved for a successor MOU for the bargaining unit.  This includes the 
$3,650 lump sum payment for one employee appointed full-time, $2,920 for the one employee 
appointed to less than full-time and a 40 percent benefit load for each.  Payment of the lump-sum will 
be made at the same time as payment for bargaining unit employees (i.e., the first pay period following 
your Commission’s approval). 

 

Subject: Salary Adjustment for Non-Management, Non-Bargaining Unit 
Employees 

  
Exhibits Attached: None 
  
Recommendation: Approve Salary Adjustment for Non-Management, Non-Bargaining Unit 

Employees 
  
Financial Statement: $9,198 



 

21 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

 
Subject: Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) 
  
Exhibits Attached: SEMAP Certification and Resolution 11-18 
  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing submission of the SEMAP 

Certification to HUD 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) measures 14 key performance 
indicators of public housing agencies (PHAs) that administer the Housing Choice Voucher program.  
By doing so, SEMAP helps HUD target monitoring and assistance to PHAs that need the most 
improvement. 
 
The 14 indicators of performance show whether PHAs help eligible families to afford decent rental 
units at a reasonable subsidy cost as intended by federal housing legislation.  The 14 key indicators 
of PHA performance are: 

1. Proper selection of applicants from the Housing Choice Voucher waiting list 
2. Sound determination of reasonable rent for each unit leased 
3. Accurate verification of family income 
4. Maintenance of a current schedule of allowances for tenant-paid utilities 
5. Performance of quality control inspections to ensure housing quality 
6. Assurance that landlords and tenants promptly correct housing quality deficiencies 
7. Expansion of housing choice outside areas of poverty or minority concentration 
8. Establishment of Payment Standards within the required range of the HUD Fair Market 

Rents 
9. Timely annual reexamination of family income 
10. Correct calculation of the tenant share of the rent and the housing assistance payment 

(HAP) made to the landlord 
11. Assurance that units comply with HUD’s Housing Quality Standards (HQS) before families 

enter into leases and PHAs enter into HAP contracts 
12. Timely annual HQS inspections 
13. Assurance that all available Housing Choice Vouchers are used 
14. Enrollment of families into the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program and the number of 

families with escrow accounts 



 

22 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 
SEMAP scores are based on PHA self-certification, HUD’s national database of tenant information, 
and information from audits conducted annually by independent auditors.  Each indicator has 
points assigned to it, with a total possible point score of 145.  HUD annually assigns each PHA a 
rating on each of the 14 indicators and generates an overall performance ratio of high (90-100%), 
standard (60-89%), or troubled (less than 60%).  Metropolitan PHAs like HACA are also able to earn 
bonus points for their achievements in encouraging assisted families to choose housing in low 
poverty areas. 
 
Every PHA must submit its SEMAP Certification within 60 days of the end of its fiscal year.  Ours is 
due by August 29, 2018 as our fiscal year ended June 30th. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The attached SEMAP Certification is a product of random sampling done internally by staff at the 
end of each quarter of the fiscal year July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, and data from HUD’s 
national database of tenant information.  HACA’s overall rating is “high” with 100% (125 points). 
 
Staff had anticipated losing points this year as described below: 
 
Indicator #9, Annual Reexaminations: HACA Score – 0 out of 10 points 
This indicator is scored 0-5-10 points.  It measures HACA’s completion of annual re-examinations on 
a timely basis (every household’s eligibility must be re-determined annually).  We achieved 89% 
compliance but needed 90% to receive 5 points and 95% to receive the full 10 points.  Our 
timeliness was impacted by conversion to new housing software.  Currently, HACA is working on 
backlogged re-examinations and anticipates we will meet the 95% compliance rate in the coming 
year. 
 
The table on the following page provides you with a review of HACA’s performance under SEMAP 
for the last four years.



 

23 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 
 
 
 

SEMAP Certification Review 2015 to 2018 

 
Indicator 

 
Indicator Description 

Maximum 
Number of 

Possible Points 

2015 Final 
Earned 
Points 

2016 Final 
Earned 
Points 

2017 Final 
Earned 
Points 

2018 
Certification 

1 Wait List 15 15 15 15 15 

2 Reasonable Rent 20 20 15 20 20 

3 Determination of Adjusted Income 20 20 20 20 20 

4 Utility Allowance Schedule 5 5 5 5 5 

5 HQS Quality Control Inspections 5 5 5 5 5 

6 HQS Enforcement 10 10 10 10 10 

7 Expanding Housing Opportunities 5 5 5 5 5 

8 Payment Standards 5 5 5 5 5 

9 Annual Reexaminations 10 10 10 10 0 

10 Correct Tenant Rent Calculations 5 5 5 5 5 

11 Pre-Contract HQS Inspections 5 5 5 5 5 

12 Annual HQS Inspections 10 10 10 10 10 

13 Lease-Up 20 20 20 20 20 

14 FSS Enrollment & Escrow Accounts 10 10 10 10 10 

Earned Points   145 140 145 135 

Deconcentration Bonus – 
Extra 5 Points 

 
5 5 5 5 0 

Total Earned Points  145 150 145 150 135 

Maximum Number  
of Points Possible 

 
145 145 145 145 145 

FINAL SCORE  
as a Percentage 

 
100% 100% 100% 100% 93% 

SEMAP RATING   High High High High 



 

24 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-18 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SECTION EIGHT MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM CERTIFICATION  
AND AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF CERTIFICATION TO THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF  

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
 

 WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has established a Section 
Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) to measure the performance of housing authorities that 
administer the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program; and 
 

 WHEREAS, SEMAP requires that housing authorities self-certify performance in connection with the 
14 SEMAP indicators; and 
 

 WHEREAS, HUD reviews the self-certification and other data available from on-line reporting systems 
and financial submissions to rank a housing authority’s performance and issues a score; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has completed its SEMAP analysis for the 
July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018 fiscal year and is prepared to submit its certification to HUD; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission does hereby approve and accept 
the SEMAP certification as presented and authorizes the Executive Director to submit it and any other 
information HUD may require to process the certification. 
 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the 
County of Alameda on this 8th day of August 2018 by the following vote: 
 
 

AYES:    
 

NOES: 
 

ABSTAIN: 
 

EXCUSED: 
 

ABSENT:            
 
 

   

Attest:  Mark Gerry 

 

 Housing Commission Chairperson 

Christine Gouig   
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary   
  Adopted: August 8, 2018 



 

25 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 

 
 



 

26 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 

 
 



 

27 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 

 



 

28 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

29 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 



 

30 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-4. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

31 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-5. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting:     August 8, 2018 

Subject: Establishment and Administration of Petty Cash Fund Policy 

  

Exhibits Attached: - Resolution No. 11-18 

- Establishment and Administration of Petty Cash Fund Policy 

  

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution  

  

Financial Statement: N/A 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of a Petty Cash Fund is to have a small amount of cash available to allow for the purchase 
or reimbursement of minor, unanticipated expenses, rather than writing a check.  The intent is to 
simplify the reimbursement of small expenses that generally do not exceed $50.  
 
HACA has a Petty Cash Fund as referenced in our Procurement Policy, approved by the Commission in 
2008.  We have recently learned that HUD prefers a separate petty cash policy so we are bringing this 
agenda item to your Commission for approval.  
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
A petty cash account should be established in an amount sufficient to cover small purchases or 
reimbursements during a reasonable period (e.g., one month).   
 
Per Chapter 5 of HUD Handbook No. 7460.8, a Petty Cash Policy must: 
 

1. be in compliance with 24 CFR §85.36 (HUD Procurement), including the small purchase method,  
2. establish the overall amount of the fund,  
3. establish the maximum amount for each purchase, and  
4. establish either the appointment of one or more individuals as Petty Cash custodians or the 

procedure to appoint such individuals. 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission adopt the attached Resolution approving the Establishment 
and Administration of Petty Cash Fund Policy. 
 



 

32 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-5. 

 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA  

 

RESOLUTION NO.:   11-18  

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PETTY CASH FUND POLICY 

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires housing 

authorities to adopt a Petty Cash Fund Policy to govern the spending of petty cash funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, staff has developed the attached Establishment and Administration of Petty Cash 

Fund Policy to comply with HUD requirements; 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission does hereby approve the 

attached Establishment and Administration of Petty Cash Fund Policy as the policy which shall supersede 

any prior policies. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the 

County of Alameda on this _________ day of _____________ 2018 by the following vote:  

 

AYES: 

  

NOES: 

  

ABSTAIN: 

  

EXCUSED: 

  

ABSENT: 

  

   

   

Attest:  Mark Gerry 

 

 Housing Commission Chairperson 

Christine Gouig   
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary   
  Adopted: August 8, 2018 



 

33 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-5. 

 

Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 

Establishment and Administration of Petty Cash Fund Policy 

 
 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Policy is to establish procedures for the establishment and administration of a Petty 

Cash Fund. 

 

SCOPE 

This Policy defines how to establish a Petty Cash Fund, types of authorized Petty Cash expenditures, and 

how the Petty Cash Fund is replenished. 

 

DEFINITIONS 

The Petty Cash Fund maintained by the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA) may be 

used to fund small dollar purchases or reimbursements.  The Petty Cash Fund is established as a fixed 

amount that is restored at frequent intervals depending on the frequency and amount of eligible 

purchases. 

 

POLICY  

 Purchases of $50 or less may be handled through the use of a Petty Cash Account.   

 The Petty Cash Account may be established in an amount sufficient to cover small purchases or 

reimbursements made during a reasonable period, e.g., one month.   Currently, the Account is 

set at $350. 

 Purchases that are for personal use are strictly prohibited.  IOUs are not permitted.  

 The Petty Cash Custodian is the Executive Assistant to the Executive Director.  The Executive 

Director may appoint other persons to serve in this role if needed. 

 

PROCEDURES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

HACA shall ensure that security is maintained and only authorized individuals have access to the Petty 

Cash.  The account shall be reconciled and replenished periodically and is subject to audit.  The person 

responsible for the Petty Cash, known as the Petty Cash Custodian, must ensure that purchases and 

reimbursements made are eligible and authorized.  To replenish the cash that has been paid out, the 

Petty Cash Custodian shall submit to the Accounting Department a Petty Cash log with attached receipts 

and the Accounting Department shall issue a check in the appropriate amount.   

 

Failure to adhere to the Petty Cash Fund Policy may result in disciplinary action. 



 

34 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6. 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
On February 9, 2011, your Commission approved the formation of Preserving Alameda County Housing, 
Inc. (PACH), a non-profit corporation, for the purpose of acquiring from the Housing Authority of the 
County of Alameda (HACA), and operating, former low-income public housing and other low-income 
housing.  The units that HACA has transferred to PACH are managed by HACA under the terms of a 
property management agreement that your Commission approved on September 14, 2011 and later 
amended on June 12, 2013.   

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
When your Commission approved the PACH-HACA Management Agreement in September 2011, only 58 
former public housing units had been disposed of by HACA and transferred to PACH.  In 2013, an 
additional 100 units were transferred to PACH, the former Nidus and Dyer developments.  The 
agreement before you today adds the 72 Mission View and Emery Glen units, for a total of 230 units. 
 
The proposed amendments also renew the agreement for another five years and modify several 
provisions to reflect actual HACA operations and procedures. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission approve the attached amended PACH-HACA Management 
Agreement. 

 

Subject: Amend and Renew PACH-HACA Management Agreement 
  
Exhibits Attached: Attachment A:  Amended Agreement 
  
Recommendation: Approve proposed amendments to the  PACH-HACA Management  

Agreement 
  
Financial Statement: None 



 

35 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA) periodically reviews its policies for updating.  
HACA’s Travel Policy was last updated in 2008.   
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Most of the recommended changes are designed to eliminate superfluous language, clarify the intent of the 
policy’s wording and update language, such as to include Fastrak as an eligible travel expense for 
reimbursement when traveling on authorized HACA business.  One substantive change is adding a new 
provision regarding the per diem travel allowance.  The per diem travel allowance generally includes an 
allowance for meals.  Existing policy language did not address the situation where conferences or events 
include meals as part of the conference registration fee.  Staff is recommending that a provision be added 
that when meals are provided as part of the conference, the per diem allowance paid will be pro-rated to 
exclude the meal(s) that is provided.       
 
A copy of the proposed revised policy is attached.  The recommended changes are highlighted in red 
tracking.  For easier reading, there is also a version attached with all the changes accepted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission approve the revised Travel Policy. 

 
 

Subject: Revised Travel Policy 
  
Exhibits Attached: Attachment B:  Redline and Clean Versions of Revised Travel Policy 
  
Recommendations: Approve the recommended revisions to HACA’s Travel Policy 
  
Financial Statement: None 



 

36 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6‐8. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
August 8, 2018 

 
Subject:  2018 HACA Scholarship Program Awards 
   
Exhibits Attached:  None 
   
Recommendation:  Approve the 2018 HACA Scholarship Awards and the revisions to the HACA 

Scholarship award categories 
   
Financial Statement:  $17,500 included in 2018‐2019 budget 

 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
This  year,  20  scholarship  applications,  shown  below  by  city  of  residence,  were  submitted  to  your 
Commission’s Scholarship Committee (Commissioners Buckholz, Gacoscos and Patz) for their review. 
 

CITY OF RESIDENCE # OF APPLICATIONS 

Dublin  2 
Emeryville  1 
Fremont  1 
Hayward  3 
San Leandro  7 
San Lorenzo  1 
Union City  5 

 
A telephone meeting with the Scholarship Committee was held on August 1.  After discussing their selections, 
the Scholarship Committee  recommended 17 HACA Scholarship awards  totaling $15,000.   The Committee 
also  selected one applicant  to  receive  the Donald C. Biddle Memorial Scholarship award  in  the amount of 
$2,500.  This special scholarship was created to honor the memory of Commissioner Don Biddle who passed 
away  in  Feburary  2018  and  the  Scholarship  Committee  selected  the  applicant  who  they  believed most 
exemplified the best in community service and service to others.     
 
In  addition  to  discussing  the  award  recommendations,  the  Committee  proposed  a  revision  to  the  HACA 
Scholarship Program award categories  in order to provide clarification on the award amounts  for graduate 
degree programs.  The proposed revisions are as follows: 
 

CURRENT CATEGORY    PROPOSED REVISION 
TYPE OF SCHOOL PROGRAM  UP TO:    TYPE OF SCHOOL OR PROGRAM  UP TO: 

Graduate Degree Programs  $1750.00    Graduate Degree Programs – 
University of California (UC schools) 
Private Universities (non‐profit) 

$1750.00 

      Graduate Degree Programs – 
For‐profit Colleges & Universities 

$750.00 



 

37 

 

 
HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-8. 

 
The Scholarship Committee recommends the following 2018 HACA Scholarship awards:   
 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME SCHOOL/PROGRAM FIELD OF STUDY 
AWARD 

RECOMMENDATION 

John Paul Abaya UC San Diego Undeclared $1,750.00 

Naja Abdul-Jaami Chabot College Early Childhood Ed $750.00 

Hosai Aria-Faizi Cal State East Bay Sociology/Human Development $1,250.00 

Jazmin  Batts-Brooks Las Positas College Veterinary Sciences $750.00 

Jasmine Breedlove RCFE Certification Administrator $575.00 

Carl Brown Chabot College Business Degree $750.00 

Treyvonn Chadwick Sierra College Health Sciences $750.00 

Kassandra Johnson Moler Barber Barbering $750.00 

Kenneth Johnson Chabot College Communications $750.00 

Mohamed Musa UC San Diego Civil Engineering $1,750.00 

Marcus Odom National Driving School Class A License $700.00 

Jacqueline Rodriguez College of San Mateo English $750.00 

Tyenisha Smith Alameda College Apparel & Merchandising $600.00 

Stacey  Troupe Cal State East Bay Liberal Arts $375.00 

Nkechi Uzoew Alliant International  Masters - Special Education $750.00 

Ebony Walker Cal State East Bay Business Admin. $1,250.00 

Jamila Williams Cal State East Bay Healthcare $750.00 

   TOTAL: $15,000.00 

 
2018 Donald C. Biddle Memorial Scholarship Award - $2,500 
 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME SCHOOL/PROGRAM FIELD OF STUDY 

Jamila Williams Cal State East Bay Healthcare 

 

Staff recommends that your Commission approve the recommendations of the 2018 HACA Scholarship 

Committee.  If your Commission approves these scholarship award recommendations, recipients will be 

invited to your September Housing Commission meeting to receive their awards.   

 



 

38 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-9. 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting:     August 8, 2018 

Subject: Alameda County Employees’ Retirement Association (ACERA) 

Medical Plan Subsidy for Eligible Retirees 

  

Exhibits Attached: ACERA Monthly Medical Allowance (MMA) Fact Sheet 

  

Recommendation: Accept Report 

  

Financial Statement: N/A 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
At your June 13, 2018 meeting, you asked about the monthly medical allowance that ACERA 
pays to retirees.  Attached is an ACERA fact sheet that explains the medical plan subsidy for 
eligible retirees. 
 
 
 



 

39 

 

 
 
 



 

40 

 

 



 

41 

 

 
 
 

 



 

42 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-10. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUDGET STATUS 

REPORT 



 

43 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-10. 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER 

Administrative Budget Status Report FYE June 30, 2018 

May 2018 

 

FY 2018 - HCV Budgeted @ Actual @ OVER PROJECTED SCH. 2017 2018

OPERATING BUDGET 5/31/2018 5/31/2018 (UNDER) TO 6/30/18 NO. BUDGET BUDGET DIFFERENCE

INCOME

Investment Income 459 0 (459) 0 A1 500 500 0

Misc. Income 298,833 283,280 (15,554) 276,032 A1 326,000 326,000 0

Grant Income 0 0 0 0 0

Administrative Fee Income 6,081,700 6,397,888 316,188 6,904,589 A 6,976,234 6,634,582 (341,652)

TOTAL INCOME 6,380,992 6,681,167 300,175 7,180,622 7,302,735 6,961,082 (341,652)

EXPENSES

Administration

Salaries (3,446,633) (3,605,962) (159,329) (4,076,305) B-1& 2 (4,110,734) (3,759,964) 350,770

Other Admin. (1,460,883) (1,191,927) 268,956 (1,300,284) C-1&2 (1,563,758) (1,593,691) (29,933)

Total (4,907,517) (4,797,889) 109,627 (5,376,589) (5,674,492) (5,353,654) 320,838

General

Insurance (205,972) (143,656) 62,317 (156,715) E (226,429) (224,697) 1,732

Employee Benefits (1,964,581) (1,979,071) (14,490) (2,158,987) (2,240,350) (2,143,179) 97,171

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total (2,170,553) (2,122,727) 47,826 (2,315,702) (2,466,779) (2,367,877) 98,902

Total Routine Expenses (7,078,070) (6,920,616) 157,454 (7,692,291) (8,141,271) (7,721,531) 419,740

Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 D2 0 0 0

TOTAL EXPENSES (7,078,070) (6,920,616) 157,454 (7,692,291) (8,141,271) (7,721,531) 419,740

Income (Deficit) (838,536) (760,449)

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) (697,078) (239,449) 457,629 (511,670) (838,536) (760,449) 78,088

Unrestricted Net Position @ 6/30/17 (6,425,207)$ 

Estimated Income (Loss) FYE 6/30/18 (511,670)

Estimated Income (Loss) FYE 6/30/18 due to NPL (1,000,000)

Projected Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/18 (7,936,876)$ 

Op. Res w/o 

GASB 68-

pension

GASB 68 - 

Pension 

Liability Total UNP

Beginning Bal  7/1/16 1,396,348    (6,619,893)  (5,223,545)     

Net loss  @ 6/30/17 (251,900)      (949,762)      (1,201,662)     

UNP @ 7/1/17 1,144,448    (7,569,654)  (6,425,207)     

Estimated Loss  @ 6/30/18 (511,670)      (1,000,000)  (1,511,670)     

Est. UNP @ 6/30/18 632,778       (8,569,654)  (7,936,877)     

Unrestricted Net Position 

(UNP)



 

44 

 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAM ACTIVITY 

REPORT 



 

45 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting:  August 8, 2018 

Subject: Programs Activity Report 

  

Exhibits Attached: Section 8 and Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Report; Section 8 

Average Contract Rent Report; Landlord Rental Listing Report; FSS 

Program Monthly Report 

  

Recommendation: Receive Report 

  

Financial Statement: None 

 
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 
 

 Lease-Up:  As of August 1, 2018, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program had 6,105 units 
under contract. 
 

 HCV Program Utilization:  As of August 1, 2018, the average HAP subsidy was $1,617 and the 
average tenant-paid rent portion was $500 for an average Contract Rent of $2,117. 

 
 As of August 1, 2018, HACA had 124 outgoing billed portability contracts (i.e., HACA voucher 

holders who are housed in another housing authority’s jurisdiction). 
 As of August 1, 2018, HACA billed other housing authorities for 440 incoming portability 

contracts. 
 As of August 1, 2018, 220 of PACH’s 230 project-based voucher (PBV) units are leased.  These 

are HACA’s former public housing units converted under HUD’s Section 18 or Rental Assistance 
Demonstration programs and transferred to PACH, HACA’s instrumentality. 

 

 Section 8 Contract Report:  A copy of the Contract Report is attached. 
 

 Landlord Rental Listings:  As of August 1, 2018, there were 50 active properties listed.   
 

FAMILY SELF SUFFICIENCY (FSS) 
In June, the FSS Department held a workshop to assist participants with identifying assets, 
characteristics, strengths, and skills as individuals.  Twelve attended the workshop. 



 

46 

 

 
HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

 
In July, the FSS department held its annual Health and Resource Fair.  The fair provided quality 
information about available resources in the community from 28 partners while also providing free 
backpacks filled with school supplies for the children in attendance.  The children also participated by 
drawing posters for NAHRO’s “What Home Means to Me” poster contest.  Volunteers and donators 
included HACA staff, FSS participants, students from Arroyo High School, Kohl’s employees, community 
partners, the Oakland Methodist Foundation and Commissioner Mark Gerry.



 

47 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

Section 8 Contract and HAP Report for the Month of June 2018 

 
Certificates Vouchers 

JUNE 2018 
TOTAL 

 JUNE 
2017 

JUNE 
2016 City Number HAP* Number HAP** Number HAP 

 

    
based on 

avg 
 

based on 
avg     

 
    

    $1,605 
 

$1,603     
 

    

Albany 0 $0  18 $28,854  18  $28,854  
 

23  26  

Castro 
Valley 12 $19,260  204 $327,012  216  $346,272  

 
212  208  

Dublin 3 $4,815  394 $631,582  397  $636,397  
 

355  355  

Emeryville 6 $9,630  148 $237,244  154  $246,874  
 

153  156  

Fremont 21 $33,705  1,044 $1,673,532  1,065  $1,707,237  
 

1,071  1,055  

Hayward 47 $75,435  1,936 $3,103,408  1,983  $3,178,843  
 

2,009  1,983  

Newark 5 $8,025  209 $335,027  214  $343,052  
 

210  217  

Pleasanton 3 $4,815  206 $330,218  209  $335,033  
 

175  112  

San Leandro 12 $19,260  1,338 $2,144,814  1,350  $2,164,074  
 

1,399  1,441  

San Lorenzo 1 $1,605  201 $322,203  202  $323,808  
 

204  191  

Union City 4 $6,420  716 $1,147,748  720  $1,154,168  
 

736  739  

TOTALS 114 182,970 6,414 10,281,642 6,528 10,464,612 
 

6,547 6,483  

          * Based on an average  June Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1,605 per certificate contract 

  **Based on an average June Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1,603 per voucher contract  

   

 



 

48 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

Section 8 Contract and HAP Report for the Month of July 2018 

 
Certificates Vouchers 

JULY 2018 
TOTAL 

 JULY 
2017 

JULY 
2016 City Number HAP* Number HAP** Number HAP 

 

    
based on 

avg   
based on 

avg     
 

    

    $1,631 
 

$1,617     
 

    

Albany 0 $0  18 $29,106  18  $29,106  
 

23  27  

Castro 
Valley 14 $22,834  201 $325,017  215  $347,851  

 
209  198  

Dublin 3 $4,893  395 $638,715  398  $643,608  
 

358  354  

Emeryville 6 $9,786  147 $237,699  153  $247,485  
 

152  125  

Fremont 22 $35,882  1,045 $1,689,765  1,067  $1,725,647  
 

1,068  1,024  

Hayward 44 $71,764  1,940 $3,136,980  1,984  $3,208,744  
 

2,002  1,887  

Newark 6 $9,786  211 $341,187  217  $350,973  
 

211  206  

Pleasanton 3 $4,893  207 $334,719  210  $339,612  
 

180  109  

San Leandro 12 $19,572  1,343 $2,171,631  1,355  $2,191,203  
 

1,396  1,424  

San Lorenzo 1 $1,631  201 $325,017  202  $326,648  
 

201  191  

Union City 4 $6,524  712 $1,151,304  716  $1,157,828  
 

730  751  

TOTALS 115 187,565 6,420 10,381,140 6,535 10,568,705 
 

6,530 6,296  

          * Based on an average  July Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1,631 per certificate contract 

  **Based on an average July Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1,617 per voucher contract  

   



 

49 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of June 2018 

 
 

 

City 
Number of 

HAP 
Contracts 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Average HAP 
Paid by 
HACA 

Average Rent 
Paid by Family 

Average 
Family-Paid 

Rent as a 
Percentage of 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Albany 
18 $1,637 $1,356 $280 17% 

Castro Valley 
216 $2,078 $1,625 $453 22% 

Dublin 
397 $1,925 $1,499 $426 22% 

Emeryville 
154 $1,638 $1,145 $494 30% 

Fremont 
1065 $2,281 $1,770 $510 22% 

Hayward 
1983 $2,021 $1,545 $476 24% 

Newark 
214 $2,470 $1,838 $632 26% 

Pleasanton 
209 $1,754 $1,334 $420 24% 

San Leandro 
1350 $2,028 $1,525 $503 25% 

San Lorenzo 
202 $2,278 $1,719 $559 25% 

Union City 
720 $2,299 $1,766 $533 23% 

 

 
*Some rents may vary by $1 due to rounding



 

50 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of July 2018 

 
 

 

City 
Number of 

HAP 
Contracts 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Average HAP 
Paid by 
HACA 

Average Rent 
Paid by Family 

Average 
Family-Paid 

Rent as a 
Percentage of 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Albany 
18 $1,354 $1,354 $294 22% 

Castro Valley 
201 $2,133 $1,670 $462 22% 

Dublin 
395 $1,932 $1,514 $418 22% 

Emeryville 
147 $1,679 $1,174 $505 30% 

Fremont 
1045 $2,295 $1,790 $505 22% 

Hayward 
1940 $2,037 $1,560 $477 23% 

Newark 
211 $2,505 $1,869 $637 25% 

Pleasanton 
207 $1,759 $1,351 $408 23% 

San Leandro 
1343 $2,048 $1,547 $501 24% 

San Lorenzo 
201 $2,294 $1,720 $574 25% 

Union City 
712 $2,306 $1,772 $534 23% 

 

 
*Some rents may vary by $1 due to rounding



 

51 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

Monthly
8/1/2017 9/1/2017 10/2/2017 11/1/2017 12/4/2017 1/2/2018 2/5/2018 3/1/2018 4/2/2018 5/1/2018 6/4/2018 8/1/2018

Registered Landlords 864 874 883 903 921 933 0 0 0 0 0 0

Landlords New to 

Section 8 Program 12 10 9 7 8 5 6 5 4 2 3 0

Active Properties 

Listed 31 48 34 42 51 51 63 64 54 46 43 50

Landlord Rental Listing Report

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

600

800

1000

A
u

g-
1

7

Se
p

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

D
e

c-
17

Ja
n

-1
8

Fe
b

-1
8

M
a

r-
18

A
p

r-
1

8

M
a

y-
1

8

Ju
n

-1
8

Ju
l-

1
8

A
u

g-
1

8

Landlords
New to

Section 8
Program
Active
Properties

Listed

The blue line on the chart above takes a severe drop in February as the Registered Landlords data is not available at this time.  Our rental 

listing vendor is working toward restoring our ability to access this information.  The data is still being tracked but simply isn’t currently 

available to customers. 



  

52 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Linda Evans, Phyllis Harrison, Mary Sturges 

Date:  July 2, 2018 

Program Summary June 2018 
Total Clients Under Contract: 185 
MDRC: 100 
Graduates: 2 
Escrow Disbursed: $49,524.40                              
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 

Terminations: 0 
New Contracts: 4 
 
Workshop-Life Coach 
On Saturday, June 23, 2018, Gloria Brown, Life Coach, presented a workshop entitled, Five 
Strategies for Building Your Personal Brand. The goal of the session was to assist participants 
with identifying assets, characteristics, strengths, and skills as individuals.  Twelve FSS 
participants attended.  
 
2018 Health and Resource Fair 
The FSS team is finalizing the details of our annual Health and Resource Fair. The fair is 
scheduled for Saturday, July 21, 2018, from 10:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m. at HACA. Community vendors 
with information tables, mini workshops, poster drawings and a free backpack with school 
supplies are some of the activities planned for the parents and children. A few of the vendors 
include: 
 

 Eden Area One Stop 

 A-1 Community Housing Services 

 Eden I & R 

 Child Family & Community Services 

 Hayward Fire Department 

 Operation HOPE – homeownership information 

 Job Corps 
We will, once again, have volunteer students from Arroyo High School in San Lorenzo and 
employees from the Kohl’s Cares program. 
 
Case Management Referrals = 15 
Job Referrals = 59 

 



  

53 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-11. 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Linda Evans, Phyllis Harrison, Mary Sturges 

Date:  August 1, 2018 

Program Summary July 2018 
Total Clients Under Contract: 186 
MDRC: 100 
Graduates: 1 
Escrow Disbursed: $1,951                            
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 

Terminations: 2 
New Contracts: 2 
 
FSS PROGRAM NEWS:  

 
2018 Health and Resource Fair 
 
On Saturday, July 21, 2018, the FSS team held its annual Health and Resource Fair. It was a 
day of fun, with quality information about available resources in the community. Sixty-eight (68) 
families attended and connected with resources from twenty-eight (28) partners representing 
the county’s social services programs, community health clinics and employers. The kids drew 
posters for NAHRO’s “What Home Means to Me” poster contest and received a free backpack 
filled with school supplies. There were light refreshments and door prizes for the FSS 
participants.  
 
The FSS team greatly appreciates the terrific volunteer support it received from HACA staff, 
FSS participants, students from Arroyo High School in San Lorenzo and Kohl’s employees. We 
are also very grateful for the grant we received from the Oakland Methodist Foundation. The 
FSS team would also like to thank Commissioner Mark Gerry for attending the event and 
donating seven gift baskets and books for our participants. As always, we received positive 
feedback about the event from both the FSS participants and vendors. 
 
Case Management Referrals = 7 
Job Referrals = 70 

 



HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6‐6. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 



A-1
757\06\986533.1 

Property Management Agreement 
Between  

Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc.  
and the

Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 

This Property Management Agreement ("Agreement") is made this __1st___ day 
of ______August___, 2018, by and between Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc. 
(PACH), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation ("Owner"), and the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA), a public body, corporate and politic 
("Agent").  This Agreement shall be effective when it is executed by all parties. 

1. APPOINTMENT AND ACCEPTANCE.  The Owner appoints the Agent as 
exclusive agent for the management of the property described in Section 2 of this 
Agreement, and the Agent accepts the appointment, subject to the terms and conditions 
set forth in this Agreement.  Agent hereby agrees to manage the Property in an efficient 
and satisfactory manner to the best of its ability.

2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY.  The property to be managed by the 
Agent under this Agreement (the "Property") is housing developments consisting of the 
land, building(s), and other improvements, which make up the Property: 

Name:   PACH-owned properties  
Location:  Alameda County 

California 
Number of Units:  230, as listed in Exhibit A, which may automatically be 

amended from time to time to include newly-acquired 
units not currently listed in Exhibit A 

3. DEFINITIONS.  As used in this Agreement: 

(a) "Principal Parties" means the Owner and the Agent. 

(b) "Management Representative" means a HACA employee, e.g., 
Programs Manager, Housing Management Leadworker or maintenance personnel. 

(c) "Property" means all aspects of administering, managing and 
maintaining the properties effectively and in compliance with all required provisions and 
budgets.

4. RENTALS.  The Agent will offer for rent and will rent the dwelling units 
with their parking spaces, and other rental facilities in the Property.  Incident thereto, the 
following provisions will apply: 

(a) Agent will show the premises to prospective applicants. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-2
757\06\986533.1 

(b) Agent will process applications for tenancy in conformance with 
Section 8 Project Based Voucher regulations, and will notify applicants of their eligibility 
status.  If an application is rejected, Agent will tell the applicant the reason for rejection.  
A wait list of prospective tenants will be maintained. 

(c) Agent will prepare and execute all dwelling leases and will execute 
the same in its name, identified thereon as Agent for the Owner.  The terms of all leases 
will comply with the pertinent provisions of California landlord/tenant law and leases will 
be in a form agreed to by the Owner and the Agent. 

5. COLLECTION OF RECEIPTS AND CHARGES.  Agent will collect when 
due all rents, charges and other amounts receivable on the Owner's account in 
connection with the management and operation of the Property.  Such receipts shall be 
deposited in the General Operating Account, in the name of the Owner. 

6. ENFORCEMENT OF LEASE.  Agent will secure full compliance by each 
tenant with the terms of the tenant's lease.  Agent may lawfully terminate any tenancy 
when, in the Agent's judgment, sufficient cause (including but not limited to nonpayment 
of rent) for such termination occurs under the terms of the tenant's lease.  For this 
purpose, the Agent is authorized to consult with legal counsel to bring actions for 
eviction and to execute notices to vacate and judicial pleadings incident to such actions.  
Attorney's fees and other necessary costs incurred in connection with such actions will 
be paid out of the General Operating Account as Property expenses. 

7. SERVICE CONTRACTS.  Agent may negotiate concession agreements 
and services contracts, and will execute the same in its name, identified thereon as 
Agent for the Owner, including, but not limited to length of term and fees for such 
services.

8. INSPECTION OF UNITS.  Agent shall inspect all units in the Property at 
least annually.  Advance notice shall be given to residents as provided in their lease 
agreements and subject to law. 

9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR.  Agent will thoroughly familiarize itself 
with the character, location, construction, layout, plan and operation of the Property, 
including the electrical, heating, plumbing, air conditioning and ventilating systems, and 
all other electrical and mechanical equipment and systems. 

Agent will cause the Property to be maintained and repaired in accordance with 
local codes and ordinances and in a condition acceptable to the Owner, including but 
not limited to cleaning, painting, decorating, repair work as may be necessary, subject 
to any limitations imposed by the Owner in addition to those contained herein.  Incident 
thereto, the following provisions will apply: 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-3
757\06\986533.1 

(a) Agent will systematically and promptly receive and investigate all 
service requests from tenants and complete such with expediency and will keep records 
of same.  Emergency requests will be abated or corrected within twenty-four (24) hours.
Agent shall inform tenants of procedures to obtain maintenance services if an 
emergency occurs after normal office hours.  Agent shall maintain records of all service 
requests and maintenance repairs provided.  

(b) Agent is authorized to purchase all materials, equipment, tools, 
appliances, supplies and services necessary for proper maintenance and repair. 

10. BIDS, DISCOUNTS, REBATES, ETC.  Agent will obtain contract 
materials, supplies and services on terms advantageous to the Property and secure and 
credit to the Property discounts, rebates or commissions obtainable with respect to 
purchases, services, contracts and other transactions on behalf of the Property as 
practicable. 

11. ACCOUNTS.  Agent shall establish a separate interest bearing deposit 
account for Property funds.  The account shall be fully insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation and shall be in the Owner's name. These funds shall not be 
commingled with Agent's funds.  In collecting, handling, and disbursing these funds, 
Agent shall comply with this Agreement and applicable law. 

All revenue collected pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement, including security 
deposits, shall be credited to the General Operating Account. 

12. DISBURSEMENTS.  Agent may disburse funds from the accounts 
described in Section 11 of this Agreement to operate the Property, including but not 
limited to the following purposes: 

(a) General Operating Account 

(1) Make the payments required to be made monthly by Owner. 

(2) Pay Agent's actual direct and indirect cost for managing the 
Property.

(3) Pay for insurance as required. 

(4) Pay for other costs for the operation of the Property which 
have been approved in the Annual Budget. 

(5) Pay for the independent audit costs and tax preparation and 
filing costs as required. 

(6) Pay for any other expenditures necessary for the 
maintenance and repair of the Property. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-4
757\06\986533.1 

(7) Pay for the costs of utilities. 

(8) Pay reasonable attorney's fees and other necessary costs 
incurred in connection with actions to terminate tenancies in accordance with Section 6 
of this Agreement or for other legal matters. 

(9) Pay other items as directed by Owner. 

13. ANNUAL BUDGET.  Agent shall submit a draft annual budget to Owner 
for Owner's review before the start of the next fiscal year, with budget estimates for the 
next fiscal year (or partial expenses) including:  (i) repairs, maintenance and cleaning; 
(ii) utilities; (iii) management services; (iv) expenditures, if any, for repairs, alterations, 
rebuilding, replacements, additions, and/or improvements in and to the Property; (v) 
security services; (vi) compensation and related fringe benefits and expenses for 
personnel; and (vii) other costs and expenses to be incurred in operating the Property; 
all of which budget estimates shall be collectively referred to as the "Annual Budget." 
Owner’s fiscal year as used in this Agreement shall be July 1 through June 30. 

During the fiscal year (or partial fiscal year) covered by each particular Annual 
Budget, Agent, in the performance of its duties as provided in this Agreement, shall 
operate within that Annual Budget as approved by Owner.  Notwithstanding any 
provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, the prior approval of the Owner will be 
required for any expenditure that exceeds one-hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) 
in any one instance for labor, materials or otherwise in connection with maintenance or 
repair, except for emergency repairs involving manifest danger to persons or property or 
required to avoid suspension of any necessary service to the Property.  In the latter 
event, Agent will inform Owner of the emergency and the necessary expenditures as 
promptly as possible. 

14. RECORDS AND REPORTS.  In addition to the requirements specified in 
other provisions of this Agreement, Agent will have the following responsibilities with 
respect to records and reports: 

(a) Agent will establish and maintain a comprehensive system of 
records, books, and accounts and any other documentation as required by Owner in a 
manner conforming to the directives of the Owner.  All records, books, and accounts 
and other documentation will be subject to examination and copying at reasonable 
hours by any authorized representative of the Owner. 

(b) Agent shall at all times keep financial records, books, accounts and 
other financial material relating to the operation of the Property in a safe condition and 
accessible to the Owner. 

(c) Agent will prepare an annual report comparing actual and budgeted 
figures for receipts and disbursements, and will submit each such report to Owner.  

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-5
757\06\986533.1 

(d) Agent will furnish such information (including occupancy reports) as 
may be requested by Owner from time to time with respect to the financial, physical, or 
operational condition of the Property. 

(e) Agent shall, at the direction of Owner, cause the records of the 
Property to be audited annually by the independent certified public accountant. 

15. EMPLOYEES.  This Agreement is not one of employment of Agent by 
Owner, but one in which Agent is engaged as an independent contractor in the business 
of managing properties.  Agent does not have the authority to establish an agency 
relationship on behalf of Owner.  All personnel will be paid, supervised, and discharged 
through the Agent, subject to the following conditions:

(a) The Housing Management Leadworker will have duties of the type 
usually associated with property manager.  He/she will be directly responsible to Agent 
and will coordinate his/her activities in the interest of good overall management. 

(b) Compensation (including fringe benefits and any indirect costs 
allocated to the Property) payable to the on-site staff, such as the Property Aide, and 
off-site staff such as maintenance personnel, plus all local, state, and federal taxes and 
assessments incident to the employment of such personnel, will be borne by the 
Property.  The rental value of any unit furnished rent-free to any on-site staff will be 
treated as a cost to the Property. 

(c) Agent agrees to comply in all material respects with all applicable 
laws and regulations concerning workers' compensation, Social Security, 
unemployment insurance, hours of labor, wages, working conditions, and like subjects 
affecting employers. 

16. ON-SITE MANAGEMENT FACILITIES.  On-site employees may reside in 
dwelling units within the Property. 

17. AGENT'S COMPENSATION.  Agent may be compensated for its services 
under this Agreement by monthly fees to be paid out of the General Operating Account 
and treated as Property expenses.  Such fees will be agreed upon as part of the Annual 
Budget approval process.  These fees may include but are not limited to a per-unit per-
month management fee, bookkeeping fee, and a lease-up or marketing fee. 

18. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall be in effect for a period 
of five (5) years, subject, however, to the following conditions: 

(a) This Agreement may be terminated by Owner upon ninety (90) 
days written notice to Agent; 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-6
757\06\986533.1 

(b) This Agreement may be terminated by Agent upon ninety (90) days 
written notice to Owner. 

Upon any termination of this Agreement, Agent shall forthwith surrender 
and deliver to Owner any space in the Property occupied by Agent.  Agent shall also 
surrender, deliver, and account for in writing to Owner all money due Owner and any 
and all money which is received by Agent from the Property after termination.  Agent 
shall also deliver to Owner such contracts, documents, papers, and records pertaining 
to the Property or to this Agreement as may be requested, and furnish all such 
information and take all such action as shall be reasonably necessary in order to 
effectuate an orderly and systematic transition of Agent's duties and activities under this 
Agreement to a new agent.  The accounting records, even if housed at the office of 
Agent, shall be considered to be official records of the Property. 

19. INSURANCE.  Owner will inform Agent of insurance to be carried with 
respect to the Property and its operations, and Agent will cause such insurance to be 
placed and kept in effect at all times.  Agent will pay premiums for such insurance out of 
the General Operating Account, and such premiums will be treated as operating 
expenses of the Property.  All insurance will be placed with such companies, on such 
conditions, in such amounts, and with such beneficial interests appearing thereon as 
shall be acceptable to the Owner, and shall be otherwise in conformity with the 
requirements of this Agreement; provided that the same will include Commercial
General Liability coverage, with the Agent designated as one of the insured, in amounts 
acceptable to Agent as well as Owner.  Agent will investigate and furnish Owner with full 
reports as to all accidents, claims, and potential claims for damage relating to the 
Property, and will cooperate with Owner's insurers in connection therewith. 

Agent will provide Owner evidence of a currently paid liability insurance policy 
with Owner as named insured, naming any Lenders as required additional insureds, 
with coverage in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with combined 
total coverage, including primary and umbrella coverage, in an amount not less than 
$2,000,000 or such greater amount as may be required by the Owner or Lenders, if any. 

Agent shall carry Errors and Omissions Insurance to protect Owner from its 
management decisions under this agreement.

20. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL ORDERS.  With the prior 
approval of Owner, Agent will take such action as may be necessary to comply promptly 
with any and all governmental orders or other requirements affecting the Property, 
whether imposed by Federal, state, county or municipal authorities. 

Agent shall notify Owner in writing of all notices of such orders or other 
requirements.

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-7
757\06\986533.1 

21. NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of Owner and Agent to comply 
fully with all Federal and State regulations with regard to non-discrimination in housing 
including: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 

 The Fair Housing Act; 

 Executive Order 11063 on Equal Opportunity in Housing; 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975; and 

 The Americans with Disabilities Act. 

(a) The Principal Parties will comply with any legislation protecting 
individual rights which may be enacted. 

(b) The Principal Parties shall not discriminate because of race, color, 
sex, age, religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, handicap, actual or perceived 
sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status, or familial status in the leasing, 
rental or other disposition of housing or related facilities (including land) included in any 
development or developments under its control, or in the use or occupancy thereof. 

(c) The Principal Parties shall not, on account of race, color, sex, age, 
religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, handicap, actual or perceived sexual 
orientation, gender identity, or marital status, or familial status: 

(1) Deny to any family the opportunity to apply for housing, or 
deny to any eligible applicant the opportunity to lease housing suitable to its needs; 

(2) Provide housing which is different than that provided others; 

(3) Subject a person to segregation or disparate treatment; 

(4) Restrict a person's access to any benefit enjoyed by others 
in connection with the program; 

(5) Treat a person differently in determining eligibility or other 
requirements for admission; 

(6) Deny a person access to the same level of services; or 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-8
757\06\986533.1 

(7) Automatically deny admission to a particular group or 
category of otherwise eligible and qualified applicants (e.g., families with children born 
to unmarried parents or families whose head or spouse is a student). 

22. ATTORNEY'S FEES.  In the event that either party incurs legal costs in 
the enforcement of the Agreement, the non-prevailing party in such controversy shall 
pay the legal costs (including, but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees) of the 
prevailing party. 

23. INDEMNIFICATION.  Owner shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Agent and its respective board members, officers, agents and employees from any and 
all losses, costs, damages, liabilities and expenses, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising directly or indirectly out of the performance of this 
Agreement and any of Agent's operations or activities related thereto, excluding the 
willful misconduct or gross negligence of Agent, its board members, officers and 
employees. 

24. NOTICE.  Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be 
given under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the addresses set forth 
below and shall be given by any of the following means: (a) personal service; (b) 
electronic communication, whether by email or fax; or (c) registered or certified, first 
class mail, return receipt requested.  Such addresses may be changed by notice to the 
other party given in the same manner, as provided above.  Any notice, demand or 
request sent pursuant to either subsection (a) or (b) hereof shall be deemed received 
upon such personal service or upon dispatch by electronic means, and, if sent pursuant 
to subsection (c), shall be deemed received on the date of delivery or the date that 
delivery is refused by the addressee, as shown on the return receipt. 

If to Owner:   
Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc. 
22941 Atherton Street 
Hayward, CA 94541 
Attention:  Secretary 

If to Agent: 

Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 
22941 Atherton Street 
Hayward, CA 94541 
Attention:  Executive Director 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



A-9
757\06\986533.1 

The Owner and the Agent, by their duly authorized officers, have executed this 
Agreement on the day and date first above written. 

OWNER:

PRESERVING ALAMEDA COUNTY 
HOUSING, INC., a California nonprofit public 
benefit corporation 

By: ______________________________ 

Name: ____Christine Gouig_____________ 

Its: ____Secretary__________________ 

AGENT: 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 
ALAMEDA, a public body, corporate and politic 

By: _____________________________ 

Name: ______Christine Gouig___________ 

Its: ______Executive Director_________ 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS

1 33857 7th Street 45 211 Galano Plaza 89 2032 Nidus Court #31 133 4125 Dyer Street #25 177 4167 Dyer Street #33 221 6200 Doyle Street #27
2 33859 7th Street 46 4248 Lunar Way 90 2032 Nidus Court #32 134 4125 Dyer Street #26 178 4167 Dyer Street #34 222 6200 Doyle Street #28
3 33861 7th Street 47 4229 Jupiter Court 91 2036 Nidus Court #33 135 4125 Dyer Street #27 179 4171 Dyer Street #35 223 6200 Doyle Street #29
4 33863 7th Street 48 119 Camino Plaza 92 2036 Nidus Court #34 136 4125 Dyer Street #28 180 4171 Dyer Street #36 224 6200 Doyle Street #30
5 33865 7th Street 49 4218 Apollo Circle 93 2036 Nidus Court #35 137 4125 Dyer Street #29 181 4171 Dyer Street #37 225 6200 Doyle Street #31
6 33867 7th Street 50 270 Galano Plaza 94 2036 Nidus Court #36 138 4125 Dyer Street #30 182 4171 Dyer Street #38 226 6200 Doyle Street #32
7 703 Decoto Road 51 4392 Planet Circle 95 2040 Nidus Court #37 139 4125 Dyer Street #31 183 4175 Dyer Street #39 227 6200 Doyle Street #33
8 711 Decoto Road 52 4359 Planet Circle 96 2040 Nidus Court #38 140 4125 Dyer Street #32 184 4175 Dyer Street #40 228 6200 Doyle Street #34
9 33882 8th Street 53 4262 Comet Circle 97 2040 Nidus Court #39 141 4125 Dyer Street #33 185 4175 Dyer Street #41 229 6200 Doyle Street #35

10 33884 8th Street 54 4504 Sonora Way 98 2040 Nidus Court #40 142 4125 Dyer Street #34 186 4175 Dyer Street #42 230 6200 Doyle Street #36
11 33724 14th Street 55 4138 Venus Place 99 2044 Nidus Court #41 143 4125 Dyer Street #35 187 4179 Dyer Street #43
12 33625 5th Street 56 4240 Apollo Circle 100 2044 Nidus Court #42 144 4125 Dyer Street #36 188 4179 Dyer Street #44
13 33504 8th Street 57 4970 Bridgepointe 101 2044 Nidus Court #43 145 4131 Dyer Street #1 189 4179 Dyer Street #45
14 33652 7th Street 58 139 Aurora Plaza 102 2044 Nidus Court #44 146 4131 Dyer Street #2 190 4179 Dyer Street #46
15 33726 14th Street 59 2000 Nidus Court #1 103 2048 Nidus Court #45 147 4131 Dyer Street #3 191 4183 Dyer Street #47
16 33615 8th Street 60 2000 Nidus Court #2 104 2048 Nidus Court #46 148 4131 Dyer Street #4 192 4183 Dyer Street #50
17 33650 7th Street 61 2000 Nidus Court #3 105 2052 Nidus Court #47 149 4135 Dyer Street #5 193 4186 Dyer Street #47
18 33761 14th Street 62 2000 Nidus Court #4 106 2052 Nidus Court #48 150 4135 Dyer Street #6 194 4186 Dyer Street #48
19 33615 5th Street 63 2004 Nidus Court #5 107 2052 Nidus Court #49 151 4135 Dyer Street #7 195 6200 Doyle Street #1
20 33512 8th Street 64 2004 Nidus Court #6 108 2052 Nidus Court #50 152 4135 Dyer Street #8 196 6200 Doyle Street #2
21 33763 14th Street 65 2004 Nidus Court #7 109 4125 Dyer Street #1 153 4139 Dyer Street #9 197 6200 Doyle Street #3
22 33759 14th Street 66 2004 Nidus Court #8 110 4125 Dyer Street #2 154 4139 Dyer Street #10 198 6200 Doyle Street #4
23 33765 14th Street 67 2008 Nidus Court #10 111 4125 Dyer Street #3 155 4139 Dyer Street #11 199 6200 Doyle Street #5
24 33617 8th Street 68 2008 Nidus Court #11 112 4125 Dyer Street #4 156 4139 Dyer Street #12 200 6200 Doyle Street #6
25 33510 8th Street 69 2008 Nidus Court #12 113 4125 Dyer Street #5 157 4143 Dyer Street #13 201 6200 Doyle Street #7
26 33623 5th Street 70 2008 Nidus Court #9 114 4125 Dyer Street #6 158 4143 Dyer Street #14 202 6200 Doyle Street #8
27 33502 8th Street 71 2012 Nidus Court #13 115 4125 Dyer Street #7 159 4143 Dyer Street #15 203 6200 Doyle Street #9
28 33617 5th Street 72 2012 Nidus Court #14 116 4125 Dyer Street #8 160 4143 dyer Street #16 204 6200 Doyle Street #10
29 406 E Street 73 2012 Nidus Court #15 117 4125 Dyer Street #9 161 4147 Dyer Street #17 205 6200 Doyle Street #11
30 408 E Street 74 2012 Nidus Court #16 118 4125 Dyer Street #10 162 4147 Dyer Street #18 206 6200 Doyle Street #12
31 33524 Third Street 75 2016 Nidus Court #17 119 4125 Dyer Street #11 163 4147 Dyer Street #19 207 6200 Doyle Street #13
32 33526 Third Street 76 2016 Nidus Court #18 120 4125 Dyer Street #12 164 4147 Dyer Street #20 208 6200 Doyle Street #14
33 33532 Third Street 77 2016 Nidus Court #19 121 4125 Dyer Street #13 165 4151 Dyer Street #21 209 6200 Doyle Street #15
34 33534 Third Street 78 2016 Nidus Court #20 122 4125 Dyer Street #14 166 4151 Dyer Street #22 210 6200 Doyle Street #16
35 32657 Brenda Way #4 79 2024 Nidus Court #21 123 4125 Dyer Street #15 167 4151 Dyer Street #23 211 6200 Doyle Street #17
36 2108 Eric Court #2 80 2024 Nidus Court #22 124 4125 Dyer Street #16 168 4151 Dyer Street #24 212 6200 Doyle Street #18
37 2133 Eric Court #4 81 2024 Nidus Court #23 125 4125 Dyer Street #17 169 4155 Dyer Street #25 213 6200 Doyle Street #19
38 4656 Barcelona Way 82 2024 Nidus Court #24 126 4125 Dyer Street #18 170 4155 Dyer Street #26 214 6200 Doyle Street #20
39 2108 Eric Court #1 83 2028 Nidus Court #25 127 4125 Dyer Street #19 171 4155 Dyer Street #27 215 6200 Doyle Street #21
40 4106 Polaris 84 2028 Nidus Court #26 128 4125 Dyer Street #20 172 4155 Dyer Street #28 216 6200 Doyle Street #22
41 4260 Apollo Circle 85 2028 Nidus Court #27 129 4125 Dyer Street #21 173 4159 Dyer Street #29 217 6200 Doyle Street #23
42 523 Tamarack #13 86 2028 Nidus Court #28 130 4125 Dyer Street #22 174 4159 Dyer Street #30 218 6200 Doyle Street #24
43 4968 Bridgepointe 87 2032 Nidus Court #29 131 4125 Dyer Street #23 175 4159 Dyer Street #31 219 6200 Doyle Street #25
44 4627 Granada Way 88 2032 Nidus Court #30 132 4125 Dyer Street #24 176 4159 Dyer Street #32 220 6200 Doyle Street #26

PRESERVING ALAMEDA COUNTY HOUSING, INC. (PACH) & HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA (HACA)

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT A

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-6.



HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6‐7. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.

melissat
Rectangle



	

Adopte

	
I.				PU
	
From	
Autho
guidel
travel
requir
travel
incide
below
	
II.				SC
	
This	p
on	beh
relate

	

	
III.			R
	

	

	
IV.			T
	
No	cla
of	emp

ed	by	Housi

URPOSE	

time	to	tim
ority	of	the
lines	for	in
ling	and	co
red	by	the	
l	arrangem
ental	trave
w	and	as	ap

COPE	

pPolicy	app
half	the	Ho
ed	expense

 HAC
 HAC

RESPONSIB

A. 	 A
	
1. Th
that	s
know

	
B. B.		Co

	
1. Th
ensur
Hous
outlin

C. All	 e
reimb
condi

TRANSPOR

aim	of	any	
ployment	
	

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

me,	travel	
e	County	of
ncurring	ex
onducting	a
Executive

ments,	airp
l	expenses
pproved	by

plies	to	the
ousing	Aut
es	from	HA

CA	Eemplo
CA	Housin

BILITY	

.		Departm

he	dDepar
staff	that	is
wledge	of	a

ommissio

he	Commi
ring	that	H
ing	Author
ned	in	this

employees
bursement
itions	of	th

RTATION	

employee
or	return	s

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

is	required
f	Alameda	
xpenses	an
authorized
e	Director	i
ort	transp
s	shall	be	r
y	the	Execu

e	following
thorityHAC
ACAthe	Hou

oyees	of	th
ng	Commis

ment	Head

rtment	hea
s	traveling
and	will	com

n	Secretar

ssion	Secr
Housing	Co
rity	have	k
	Policy.	

s	 and	 C
t	requests	
his	Policy.	

e	for	the	ex
shall	be	all

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

d	to	condu
(HACA).		T
nd	for	the	r
d	HACAHo
includes	th
ortation,	t
reimbursed
utive	Direc

g	individua
CA	and	wh
using	Auth

he	Housing
ssioners	

ds	/	Depar

ads	and	Uu
g	on	behalf
mply	with

ry	/	Comm

retary	and	
ommission
knowledge

Commissio
for	travel

xpense	of	t
lowed	with

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

uct	busines
This	Ppolic
reimburse
ousing	Auth
he	Executiv
transporta
d	within	th
ctor.	

als	who	ar
ho	are	seek
hority:	

g	Authority

rtment	Un

unit	manag
f	of	HACAth
h	the	requir

mission	Cl

Commissi
ners	who	a
e	of	and	wi

ners	 are	
	expenses	

ransportat
hout	appro

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

ss	on	beha
cy	sets	for
ement	of	ex
hority	bus
ve	Directo
ation,	lodgi
he	limits	a

e	traveling
king	reimb

y	

nit	Manag

gers	are	re
he	Housin
rements	o

lerk	

ion	Clerk	a
re	travelin
ill	comply	

respons
are	subm

tion	from	
oval	from	

ALAMEDA

lf	of	the	Ho
th	procedu
xpenses	in
iness.		Any
or’s	design
ing,	meals,
nd	conditi

g	and	cond
bursement	

gers	

esponsible	
g	Authorit
utlined	in	

are	respon
ng	on	beha
with	the	r

sible	 for	
itted	with

his/her	re
the	Execut

													Pa

ousing	
ures	and	
ncurred	wh
y	approval
ee.	Expens
,	and	other
ions	descri

ducting	bu
t	for	travel	

for	ensuri
ty	have	
this	Policy

sible	for	
alf	of	the	
equiremen

ensuring
in	the	limi

esidence	to
tive	Direct

age	1	of	7	

hile	
l	
ses	for	
r	
ibed	

siness	

ing	

y.	

nts	

g	 that	
its	and	

o	place	
tor.	

Formatt

Formatt
Level: 1 +
at: 1 + A
Indent at

Formatt
0.75"

Formatt
numberin

Formatt

Formatt
Level: 1 +
at: 1 + A
Indent at

Formatt
0.75"

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
Level: 1 +
at: 1 + A
Indent at

Formatt

ed: Font: 12 p

ed: List Paragr
+ Numbering S

Alignment: Left
t:  0.75"

ed: List Paragr

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Font: 12 p

ed: List Paragr
+ Numbering S

Alignment: Left
t:  0.75"

ed: List Paragr

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: List Paragr
+ Numbering S

Alignment: Left
t:  0.75"

ed: Font: 12 p

pt, Bold

raph, Numbere
Style: A, B, C, …
+ Aligned at: 

raph, Indent: L

eft:  0.75",  No

pt, Bold

raph, Numbere
Style: A, B, C, …
+ Aligned at: 

raph, Indent: L

eft:  0.75",  No

raph, Numbere
Style: A, B, C, …
+ Aligned at: 

pt

ed +
… + Start
0.5" +

Left: 

bullets or

ed +
… + Start
0.5" +

Left: 

bullets or

ed +
… + Start
0.5" +

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



	

Adopteed	by	Housi

	
A. Auto

	
1. H

	
a)

	
Alame
Sacram
San	M

	
b)

	
2. Pe

	
a)

b)

c)

a)

e)

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

	Travel	

ousing	Au

) HACAHo
HACAou
as	define
shall	be	
Director

eda	 Co
mento	 Sa
ateo	 So

) Expense
Fastrak	
paymen

ersonal	Ve

) Mileage	
Norther
Director
a) 	

) Expense
Fastrak	
paymen
current	
used.	
b) 	

) Traveler
c) 	

) Reimbur
the	dest
not	avai
the	Exec
d) 	

)d) If	a	C
residenc
pointpla
the	ffirst
or	headq
mileage	
office	or

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

thority	Ve

ousing	Aut
using	Auth
ed	and	sho
driven	out
r.	

ontra	Costa
an.	Francis
olano	

es	shall	be	
lanes	unle
t	for	other

ehicles	

claims	for
rn	Californ
r.	

es	shall	be	
lanes	unle
t	for	other
applicable

rs	should	u

rsement	m
tination	or	
lable	to	th
cutive	Dire

Commissio
ce,	mileage
ace	of	cont
t	pointplac
quarters	to
will	be	all
r	headquar

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

ehicles	

thority‐ow
ority	busin
own	below
tside	these

a	 Mar
sco	 San

Son

limited	to	
ess	the	Exe
r	expenses

r	travel	in	p
ia	Countie

limited	to	
ess	the	Exe
r	expenses
e	IRS	allow

use	the	mo

may	not	exc
the	fare	fo

he	point	of	
ector.	

oner	or	em
e	is	allowe
tact.		In	no	
ce	of	conta
o	the	first	p
lowed	from
rters.	

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

wned	vehic
ness	withi
w.		No	HACA
e	Ccountie

rin	
nta	Clara	
noma	

	gasoline,	p
ecutive	Dir
s.	

privately	o
s	must	be	

	mileage,	p
ecutive	Dir
s.		For	mile
wable	milea

ost	expedit

ceed	the	ty
or	other	co
destinatio

mployee	dep
d	from	the
case	shall	
act	exceed	
pointplace
m	the	last	p

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

les	may	be
n	the	Nort
Aousing	A
es	unless	ap

Monterey
Santa	Cru
Yolo	

parking,	a
rector	has	

owned	veh
authorize

parking,	an
rector	has	
eage,	a	rate
age	rate	fo

tious	auto	

ypical	coac
ommon	car
on,	unless	o

parts	from
e	place	of	r
the	mileag
the	distan
e	of	contac
pointplace

ALAMEDA

e	used	for	
thern	Calif
Authority‐o
pproved	b

y	 Napa
uz	 San	Jo

Stanis

nd	bridge	
specificall

hicles	outsi
d	by	the	Ex

nd	bridge	t
specificall
e	per	mile,	
or	the	trave

route.	

ch	round	tr
rrier	if	airl
otherwise	

m	his/her	p
residence	t
ge	allowed
nce	from	th
ct.		Similarl
e	of	contact

													Pa

authorized
fornia	Coun
owned	veh
by	the	Exec

oaquin
slaus	

tolls,	and	
y	authoriz

ide	the	
xecutive	

tolls,	and	
y	authoriz
set	by	the
el	period,	w

rip	airfare
line	servic
approved	

place	of	
to	the	first
d	from	hom
he	HACA	o
ly,	only	suc
t	to	the	HA

age	2	of	7	

d	
nties	
hicle	
cutive	

zed	

zed	
	
will	be	

e	for	
ce	is	
by	

t	
me	to	
ffice	
ch	
ACA	

Formatt

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

ed Table

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

eft:  1.25",  No

eft:  1.25",  No

eft:  1.25",  No

eft:  1.25",  No

bullets or

bullets or

bullets or

bullets or

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



	

Adopteed	by	Housi

	
B. Rail/

	
1. BA

	
a)

b)

	
2. Am

	
a)

b)

	
3. Ai

	
a)

b)

c)

	

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

/Air	Trave

ART	

) Within	t
Commis
and	doe
a) 	

) The	cost
the	stati
the	depa
may	or	m
may	also

mtrak	

) Within	t
Commis
and	doe
a) 	

) The	cost
station	t
trip	from
destinat
Paymen

ir	Travel	

) Coach	ai
can	be	m
a) 	

) Actual	e
the	plac
travel	ar
employe
airport	s
econom
traveler

) Reimbur
the	dest
not	avai
the	Exec
b) 	

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

el	

the	geogra
ssioners	ar
s	not	creat

t	of	a	BART
ion	neares
arting	stati
may	not	be
o	be	provid

the	geogra
ssioners	ar
s	not	creat

t	of	an	Amt
to	the	stati
m	the	depa
tion	(these
nt	for	the	ti

irfare	will	
made	at	the

xpenses	fo
e	of	destin
rrangemen
ees	should
shuttle,	air
ical	and	th
.	
rsement	m
tination	or	
lable	to	th
cutive	Dire

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

aphic	area	s
re	encoura
te	an	undu

T	ticket	wi
t	the	place
ion	to	the	
e	the	same
ded	prior	t

aphic	area	s
re	encoura
te	an	undu

trak	ticket
ion	neares
arting	stati
e	may	or	m
icket	may	a

be	paid	fo
e	employe

or	travel	to
nation	and	
nts	for	suc
d	consider	t
rport	buse
hat	does	no

may	not	exc
the	fare	fo

he	point	of	
ector.	

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

served	by	
aged	to	use
ue	inconve

ill	be	reimb
e	of	destina
station	ne
e	stations	i
to	the	trip	

served	by	
aged	to	use
ue	inconve

t	will	be	re
st	the	place
ion	to	the	s
may	not	be	
also	be	pro

r	a	direct	o
e	or	Comm

o	and	from
back	will	b
h	transpor
the	modes
s,	persona
ot	require	

ceed	the	ty
or	other	co
destinatio

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

BART,	eEm
e	BART	if	it
nience	for

bursed	fro
ation,	and	
arest	the	p
n	each	cas
if	request

Amtrak,	e
e	Amtrak	if
nience	for

eimbursed	
e	of	destina
station	nea
the	same	s
ovided	pri

or	non‐sto
missioner’s

m	the	airpo
be	reimbu
rtation,	Co
s	of	availab
al	car,	etc.)
undue	inc

ypical	coac
ommon	car
on,	unless	o

ALAMEDA

mployees	a
t	is	econom
r	the	travel

om	the	dep
for	the	ret
place	of	de
se).		Payme
ted.	

Employee
f	it	is	econo
r	the	travel

from	the	d
ation,	and	
arest	the	p
stations	in
or	to	the	tr

op	route.		A
s	own	expe

rt	and	from
ursed.		Whe
ommission
ble	transpo
	and	select
onvenienc

ch	round	tr
rrier	if	airl
otherwise	

													Pa

and	
mical	to	do
ler.	

parting	stat
turn	trip	fr
estination	(
ent	for	the

s	and	
omical	to	d
ler.	

departing	
for	the	ret
place	of	
n	each	case
rip	if	requ

Airfare	upg
ense.	

m	the	airp
en	making
ers	and	
ortation	(t
t	one	that	
ce	for	the	

rip	airfare
line	servic
approved	

age	3	of	7	

o	so	

tion	to	
rom	
(these	
e	ticket	

do	so	

turn	

e).		
ested.	

grades	

ort	to	
g	

taxi,	
is	

e	for	
ce	is	
by	

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

eft:  1.25",  No

eft:  1.25",  No

eft:  1.25",  No

eft:  1.25",  No

bullets or

bullets or

bullets or

bullets or

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



	

Adopte

	
V.			PA
	

	
	
	

1. 
per	di
(GSA)

ed	by	Housi

4. Pu
	
a)
Co
no
b)
or
re
pl
Pa
re

AYMENT	F

A. Lodg
	

1.
co
w
ap

B. Meal
	

1.		Comm
iem	based	
	for	the	sp

2. 2.
reimb
confe

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

ublic	Tran

) If	an	
ommission
ot	create	a
) The	
r	stop	to	th
eturn	trip	f
lace	of	des
ayment	for
equested.	

FOR	OTHE

ging	

. Actu
onference	
which	case	
pplicable	f

ls	and	Inci

missioners	
on	the	cur
pecific	trav

	
Inciden
	

 fF
h

 tT
w
s

	
Meals:	
If	meals	

meal
pro	r

	
.	Expenses
bursed	exc
erence	or	e

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

sportation

area	is	ser
ners	are	en
an	undue	in
cost	of	tick
he	depot	o
from	the	d
stination	(t
r	the	ticke

ER	EXPENS

ual	cost,	inc
rate	for	a	s
the	lowest
fees	and	ta

idental	Ex

and	emplo
rrent	rate	p
vel	destinat

ntal	expen

Fees	and	t
hotel	maids
Transport
where	mea
ite.	

are	includ
l(s)	portio
rated	per	d

s	that	excee
cept	in	inst
event	meet

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

n	

rved	by	pu
ncouraged
nconvenie
kets/fares	
r	stop	nea
departing	d
these	may	
t	or	fare	m

SES	

cluding	ap
standard	r
t	rate	avail
axes.	

xpenses	

oyees	shal
posted	by	
tion.	

nses	includ

tips	given	t
s;,	and	b)		
tation	betw
als	are	take

ded	as	part
n	will	be	d
diem	will	b

ed	the	tota
tances	wh
ting	site	or

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

ublic	trans
d	to	use	it	i
ence	for	the
will	be	rei

arest	the	pl
depot	or	st
or	may	no

may	also	be

plicable	ta
room	unles
lable	for	a	

l	receive,	f
the	U.S.	Ge

de:		a)		

to	porters,

ween	place
en,	if	suitab

t	of	athe	co
deducted	fr
be	provide

al	amount	
ere	meetin
r	rooms	fo

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

portation,
f	it	is	econ
e	traveler.
imbursed	
lace	of	des
top	to	the	d
ot	be	the	sa
e	provided

axes	and	fe
ss	such	rat
standard	r

for	meals	a
eneral	Serv

	baggage	c

es	of	lodgin
ble	meals	c

onference
rom	the	al
ed.	

of	the	per	
ngs	are	req
r	conferen

ALAMEDA

,	employee
nomical	to	

from	the	d
stination,	a
depot	or	st
ame	in	eac
d	prior	to	th

ees,	at	the	g
tes	aren’t	a
room,	incl

and	incide
vices	Adm

carriers,	be

ng	or	busin
cannot	be	

or	event,	t
llowable	p

diem	shal
quired	tha
nces	are	no

													Pa

es	and	
do	so	and	

departing	d
and	for	the
top	neares
ch	case).		
he	trip	if	

governme
available	in
uding	

ntal	expen
ministration

ellhops	an

ness	and	p
obtained	a

the	cost	of	
er	diem	an

ll	not	be	
t	are	not	a
ot	available

age	4	of	7	

does	

depot	
e	
st	the	

nt	or	
n	

nses,	a	
n	

d	

places	
at	the	

the	
nd	a	

at	the	
e	

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
stops: No

Formatt

Formatt

Formatt
+ Aligned

Formatt

Formatt
numberin

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed: Indent: Le
ng

ed:  No bullets
ot at  1.25"

ed: Font: Bold

ed: Font: 12 p

ed: List Paragr
d at:  1.5" + In

ed: Font: Bold

ed: Indent: Le
ng, Tab stops: N

eft:  1",  No bu

eft:  1",  No bu

s or numbering

d, Underline

pt

raph, Bulleted
ndent at:  1.75"

d, Underline

eft:  0.75",  No
Not at  1.25"

llets or

llets or

g, Tab

+ Level: 1
"

bullets or

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



	

Adopte

	

	

	

 

 
  
	

ed	by	Housi

withi
be	re
Execu

3. 3.
charg
busin
amou

4. 4.
the	re
after	

5. 5.
event
excee
sched
days	
meals

	
6. 6.
provi
be	re
calcu
 	
: 
    
dinne
Comm

       

C.		 R
	

1.

	
2.

	

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

in	walking	
imbursed	
utive	Direc

.		Costs	of	t
ges	and	sim
ness	shall	a
unt.	

.		Prior	to	t
eceive	thei
travel	is	co

.		Per	diem
t	attended
ed	one	day
dules	proh
of	a	confer
s	are	inclu

.		For	trave
ided	as	par
imbursed	
lated	for	th

   7. When
er time, the 
missioner’s

equired	E

. Except	f
date	inc
the	Exec
within	th

. Receipts
or	emplo
submitte
available

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

distance	a
separately
ctor.	

telephone	
milar	items
also	be	con

travel,	Com
ir	per	diem
ompleted.	

m	allowanc
.		In	additi
y	before	an
hibit	travel
rence	or	ev
uded	as	par

el	periods	
rt	of	the	ev
but	shall	n
he	meal	pe

n a confere
cost of lun

s own expe

Expense	D

for	per	diem
urred,	and
cutive	Dire
hirty	(30)

s	associate
oyee	is	req
ed	along	w
e.	

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

and	requir
y	outside	o

calls,	inter
s	necessar
nsidered	re

mmissione
m	amount	p
		

es	shall	be
on,	a	per	d
nd/or	one	d
	at	reasona
vent.		A	pr
rt	of	the	co

of	less	tha
vent,	the	ac
not	exceed
eriod	invol

ence conclu
nch or dinn
ense. 

Documenta

m	items,	a
d	the	amou
ector	empl
)	days	of	th

ed	with	the
questing	re
with	the	ex

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

re	travel	by
of	the	per	d

rnet	conne
rily	inciden
eimbursab

ers	and	em
prior	to	tra

e	computed
diem	will	b
day	after	t
able	hours
ro‐rated	pe
onference	i

n	one	day	
ctual	expe
d	the	per	di
lved.	

udes prior t
er on that d

ation	

a	detailed	e
unt	related
loyee’s	sup
he	comple

e	expenses
eimbursem
xpense	rep

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

y	taxi,	bus,
diem	amou

ections,	pr
nt	to	the	pe
ble	items	o

ployees	m
avel	or	suc

d	for	the	d
be	compute
the	event,	o
s	on	the	ac
er	diem	wi
itinerary,	a

and	wher
enses	for	th
iem	amoun

to or at lun
day will be

expense	re
d	to	the	item
pervisor	fo
etion	of	the

s	for	which
ment	must
ort	unless

ALAMEDA

,	etc.		Thos
unt	upon	a

inting	cha
erformanc
outside	of	t

may	submit
ch	paymen

days	of	the	
ed	for	trav
only	if	tim
ctual	begin
ill	be	provi
as	indicate

e	a	meal	o
he	meal	or
nt	that	wo

ch time or 
 at the emp

eport	listin
m	must	be
or	expense
e	travel.			

h	a	Housing
t	be	attache
	proof	of	p

													Pa

se	expense
approval	b

rges,	fax	
ce	of	officia
the	per	die

t	a	request
nt	may	be	m

conferenc
vel	days	no
e	and/or	t
nning	and	e
ided	when
ed	above.

r	meals	ar
r	the	meals
ould	typica

prior to or 
ployee or 

ng	each	item
e	submitted
	reimburs

g	Commiss
ed	and	
payment	is

age	5	of	7	

es	shall	
y	the	

al	
em	

t	for	
made	

ce	or	
ot	to	
travel	
ending	
n	

re	not	
s	will	
ally	be	

at 

m,	the	
d	to	
ement	

sioner	

s	not	

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
numberin

Formatt
0 pt, Line

Formatt

ed: Indent: Le
ng, Tab stops: N

ed: Indent: Le
ng, Tab stops: N

ed: Indent: Le
ng, Tab stops: N

ed: Indent: Le
ng, Tab stops: N

ed: Indent: Le
e spacing:  sing

ed: Font: Bold

eft:  0.75",  No
Not at  1.25"

eft:  0.75",  No
Not at  1.25"

eft:  0.75",  No
Not at  1.25"

eft:  0.75",  No
Not at  1.25"

eft:  0.75", Spa
gle

d

bullets or

bullets or

bullets or

bullets or

ace After: 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



	

Adopte

	
	
VI.			D
	
All	em
updat
return
	
		
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Travel

	
ed	by	Housi

3.

DISSEMINA

mployees	s
ted	 from	 t
n,	acknowl

l	Policy	9/08

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

. All	requ
report.	

ATION	OF	

shall	receiv
time	 to	 tim
ledging	tha

8;	8/8/18	

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

ired	appro

POLICY	

ve	a	copy	
me	 and	 re
at	the	emp

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

ovals	must

of	 this	Po
edistribute
ployee	has	

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

t	be	obtain

olicy	when
ed	with	 a	
received,	

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

ned	and	inc

n	they	are	
form	 for	 t
read,	and	u

ALAMEDA

cluded	wit

hired.	 	Th
the	 emplo
understan

													Pa

th	the	expe

he	Policy	m
oyee	 to	 sig
nds	this	Po

age	6	of	7	

ense	

may	be	
gn	 and	
licy.			

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



	

Adopte

	
I	ackn
“Trave
agree	
discip
fulfill	
	
I	 ackn
invest
such	i
	
	
Dated
	
	
Print	N
	
	
Signat
	
	

	

ed	by	Housi

ACKNO

nowledge	 t
el	 Policy.”
to	 abide	

pline	 for	 vi
my	respon

nowledge	
tigate	any	
nvestigati

d:		 	

Name:	 	

ture:	 	

ng	Commiss

	HOUS

OWLEDG

the	receip
	 	 I	 have	 r
by	my	 res
iolating	 th
nsibilities	a

that	 the	
potential	v
on.	

	

	

	

sion	–	8/8/1

SING	AUTH

GEMENT

pt	of	a	cop
read	 and	 u
sponsibilit
his	Policy	 o
as	outlined

Housing	 A
violations	

	 	

	 	

	 	

/18	

HORITY	OF

TRA

T	OF	REC

y	of	 the	H
understan
ties	 as	 out
or	 subject
d	in	the	Po

Authority	
of	this	Po

	

	

	

	

F	THE	COU

AVEL	PO

CEIPT	A

Housing	Au
d	my	 resp
tlined.	 	 I	 u
t	 to	other	
olicy.	

of	 the	 Co
licy	and	th

UNTY	OF	A

OLICY

AND	UND

uthority	of
ponsibilitie
understand
appropria

ounty	 of	 A
hat	I	have	

	

	

	

ALAMEDA

DERSTA

f	 the	Coun
es	 under	 t
d	 that	 I	w
ate	 sanctio

Alameda	 h
a	duty	to	c

													Pa

ANDING

nty	of	Alam
the	 Policy
will	 be	 subj
ons	 for	 fail

has	 author
cooperate	

age	7	of	7	

G	

meda’s	
y	 and	 I	
ject	 to	
ling	 to	

rity	 to	
in	any	

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



 

Adopted by Housing Commission – 8/8/18               Page 1 of 6 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

TRAVEL POLICY 

 
I.    PURPOSE 
 
From time to time, travel is required to conduct business on behalf of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA).  This Policy sets forth procedures and 
guidelines for incurring expenses and for the reimbursement of expenses incurred while 
traveling and conducting authorized HACA business.  Any approval required by the 
Executive Director includes the Executive Director’s designee.  
 
II.    SCOPE 
 
This Policy applies to the following individuals who are traveling and conducting business 
on behalf HACA and who are seeking reimbursement for travel related expenses from 
HACA: 

 
 HACA employees  
 HACA Housing Commissioners 

 
III.   RESPONSIBILITY 
 

A. Department Heads/ Unit Managers 
 
Department heads and Unit managers are responsible for ensuring that staff 
traveling on behalf of HACA have knowledge of and will comply with the 
requirements outlined in this Policy. 

 
B. Commission Secretary / Commission Clerk 

 
The Commission Secretary and Commission Clerk are responsible for ensuring 
that Housing Commissioners who are traveling on behalf of the Housing 
Authority have knowledge of and will comply with the requirements outlined in 
this Policy. 

 
C. All employees and Commissioners are responsible for ensuring that 

reimbursement requests for travel expenses are submitted within the limits and 
conditions of this Policy. 

 
IV.   TRANSPORTATION 
 
No claim of any employee for the expense of transportation from his/her residence to place 
of employment or return shall be allowed without approval from the Executive Director. 

 
 
 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



 

Adopted by Housing Commission – 8/8/18               Page 2 of 6 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

TRAVEL POLICY 

A. Auto Travel 
 
1. Housing Authority Vehicles 

 
a) HACA-owned vehicles may be used for authorized HACA business within 

the Northern California Counties as defined and shown below.  No HACA-
owned vehicle shall be driven outside these counties unless approved by 
the Executive Director. 

 
Alameda Contra Costa Marin Monterey Napa 
Sacramento San Francisco Santa Clara Santa Cruz San Joaquin 
San Mateo Solano Sonoma Yolo Stanislaus 

 
b) Expenses shall be limited to gasoline, parking, bridge tolls and Fastrak 

lanes unless the Executive Director has specifically authorized payment 
for other expenses. 

 
2. Personal Vehicles 

 
a) Mileage claims for travel in privately owned vehicles outside the 

Northern California Counties must be authorized by the Executive 
Director. 
 

b) Expenses shall be limited to mileage, parking, bridge tolls and Fastrak 
lanes unless the Executive Director has specifically authorized payment 
for other expenses.  For mileage, a rate per mile, set by the current 
applicable IRS allowable mileage rate for the travel period will be used. 
 

c) Travelers should use the most expeditious auto route. 
 

d) If a Commissioner or employee departs from his/her place of residence, 
mileage is allowed from the place of residence to the first place of contact.  
In no case shall the mileage allowed from home to the first place of 
contact exceed the distance from the HACA office to the first place of 
contact.  Similarly, only such mileage will be allowed from the last place of 
contact to the HACA office. 

 
B. Rail/Air Travel 

 
1. BART 

 
a) Employees and Commissioners are encouraged to use BART if it is 

economical to do so and does not create an undue inconvenience for the 
traveler. 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



 

Adopted by Housing Commission – 8/8/18               Page 3 of 6 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

TRAVEL POLICY 

b) The cost of a BART ticket will be reimbursed from the departing station to 
the station nearest the place of destination, and for the return trip from 
the departing station to the station nearest the place of destination (these 
may or may not be the same stations in each case).  Payment for the ticket 
may also be provided prior to the trip if requested. 

 
2. Amtrak 

 
a) Employees and Commissioners are encouraged to use Amtrak if it is 

economical to do so and does not create an undue inconvenience for the 
traveler. 
 

b) The cost of an Amtrak ticket will be reimbursed from the departing 
station to the station nearest the place of destination, and for the return 
trip from the departing station to the station nearest the place of 
destination (these may or may not be the same stations in each case).  
Payment for the ticket may also be provided prior to the trip if requested. 

 
3. Air Travel 

 
a) Coach airfare will be paid for a direct or non-stop route.  Airfare upgrades 

can be made at the employee or Commissioner’s own expense. 
 

b) Actual expenses for travel to and from the airport and from the airport to 
the place of destination and back will be reimbursed. 

 
c) Reimbursement may not exceed the typical coach round trip airfare for 

the destination or the fare for other common carrier if airline service is 
not available to the point of destination, unless otherwise approved by 
the Executive Director. 

 
4. Public Transportation 

 
The cost of tickets/fares will be reimbursed from the departing depot or stop 
to the depot or stop nearest the place of destination, and for the return trip 
from the departing depot or stop to the depot or stop nearest the place of 
destination (these may or may not be the same in each case).  Payment for 
the ticket or fare may also be provided prior to the trip if requested. 

 
V.   PAYMENT FOR OTHER EXPENSES 
 

A. Lodging 
 

Actual cost, including applicable taxes and fees, at the government or 
conference rate for a standard room unless such rates aren’t available in 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



 

Adopted by Housing Commission – 8/8/18               Page 4 of 6 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

TRAVEL POLICY 

which case the lowest rate available for a standard room, including 
applicable fees and taxes. 

 
B. Meals and Incidental Expenses 

 
1. Commissioners and employees shall receive, for meals and incidental 

expenses, a per diem based on the current rate posted by the U.S. General 
Services Administration (GSA) for the specific travel destination. 

 
Incidental expenses include:    
 

 Fees and tips given to porters, baggage carriers, bellhops and hotel 
maids; 

 Transportation between places of lodging or business and places 
where meals are taken, if suitable meals cannot be obtained at the 
site. 

 
Meals: 

 If meals are included as part of a conference or event, the meal(s) 
that are included will be deducted from the allowable per diem 
and a pro-rated per diem will be paid. 

 
2. Expenses that exceed the total amount of the per diem shall not be 

reimbursed except in instances where meetings are required that are not at 
the conference or event meeting site or rooms for the conference are not 
available within walking distance and require travel by taxi, bus, etc.  Those 
expenses shall be reimbursed separately outside of the per diem amount 
upon approval by the Executive Director. 

 
3. Costs of telephone calls, internet connections, printing charges, fax charges 

and similar items necessarily incident to the performance of official business 
shall also be considered reimbursable items outside of the per diem amount. 

 
4. Commissioners and employees may receive their per diem amount prior to 

travel or such payment may be made after travel is completed.   
 

5. Per diem allowances shall be computed for the days of the conference or 
event attended.  In addition, a per diem will be computed for travel days not 
to exceed one day before and/or one day after the event, only if time and/or 
travel schedules prohibit travel at reasonable hours on the actual beginning 
and ending days of a conference or event.  A pro-rated per diem will be 
provided when meals are included as part of the conference itinerary, as 
indicated above. 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



 

Adopted by Housing Commission – 8/8/18               Page 5 of 6 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

TRAVEL POLICY 

6. For travel periods of less than one day and where a meal or meals are not 
provided as part of the event, the actual expenses for the meal or the meals 
will be reimbursed but shall not exceed the per diem amount that would 
typically be calculated for the meal period involved. 

 

7. When a conference concludes prior to or at lunch time or prior to or at 
dinner time, the cost of lunch or dinner on that day will be at the employee or 
Commissioner’s own expense. 

 
C. Required Expense Documentation 
 

1. Except for per diem items, a detailed expense report listing each item, the 
date incurred, and the amount related to the item must be submitted to the 
employee’s supervisor for expense reimbursement within thirty (30) days 
of the completion of the travel.   

 
2. Receipts associated with the expenses for which a Housing Commissioner or 

employee is requesting reimbursement must be attached and submitted 
along with the expense report unless proof of payment is not available. 

 
VI.   DISSEMINATION OF POLICY 
 
All employees shall receive a copy of this Policy when they are hired.  The Policy may be 
updated from time to time and redistributed with a form for the employee to sign and 
return, acknowledging that the employee has received, read, and understands this Policy.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.



 

Adopted by Housing Commission – 8/8/18               Page 6 of 6 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

TRAVEL POLICY 

 Travel Policy 9/08; 8/8/18 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING 

 
I acknowledge the receipt of a copy of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda’s 
“Travel Policy.”  I have read and understand my responsibilities under the Policy and I 
agree to abide by my responsibilities as outlined.  I understand that I may be subject to 
discipline for violating this Policy or subject to other appropriate sanctions for failing to 
fulfill my responsibilities as outlined in the Policy. 
 
I acknowledge that the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has authority to 
investigate any potential violations of this Policy and that I have a duty to cooperate in any 
such investigation. 
 
 
Dated:         
 
 
Print Name:        
 
 
Signature:        
 
 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6-7.


	MEETING AGENDA - PG. 1 :  AUGUST 8, 2018
	MEETING AGENDA - PG. 2:  AUGUST 8, 2018
	3.  ELECTION OF OFFICERS
	4. MINUTES OF THE JUNE 13, 2018 MEETING
	6.  NEW BUSINESS
	6-1.  Recognize Vanessa Diaz as HACA Shining Star
	6-2.  Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SEIU Local 1021
	Exhibit:  Resolution No. 10-18
	Exhibit:  Total Tentative Agreement
	Exhibit:  MOU - Marked changes only.

	6-3.  Salary Adjustment for Non-Management, Non-Bargaining Unit Employees
	6-4.  Resolution Authorizing Submission of SEMAP Certification to HUD
	Exhibit:  Resolution No. 11-18
	Exhibit:  SEMAP Certification

	6-5.  Resolution Approving the Petty Cash Fund Policy
	Exhibit:  Resolution No. 12-18
	Exhibit:  Petty Cash Fund Policy

	6-6.  Amenda and Renew the Management Agreement with Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc.
	Attachment A:  Amended Management Agreement

	6-7.  Approve Revisions to the HACA Travel Policy
	Attachment B:  Marked up changes to the Travel Policy
	Attachment B:  Revised Travel Policy - clean version

	6-8.  2018 HACA Scholarship Program Awards
	6-9.  ACERA Medical Plan Subsidy for Eligible Retirees
	Exhibit:  Monthly Medical Allowance

	6-10.  Budget Status Report
	Budget:  Housing Choice Voucher - June 2018

	6-11.  Programs Activity Report
	Report:  Section 8 Contract & HAP Report for the month of June 2018
	Report:  Section 8 Contract & HAP Report for the month of July 2018
	Report:  Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of June 2018
	Report:  Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of July 2018
	Report:  Landlord Rental Listing Report
	Report:  FSS Program Summary - June 2018
	Report:  FSS Program Summary - July 2018





